[ QITY 9F

>~

2
2
y

REVISED AGENDA
(ADDED CONTINUED ITEMS FROM NOVEMBER 3, 2022)

BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL MEETING

Tuesday, November 15, 2022
6:00 PM

JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR
Councilmembers:

DISTRICT 1 — RASHI KESARWANI DISTRICT 5 — SOPHIE HAHN
DISTRICT 2 — TERRY TAPLIN DISTRICT 6 — SUSAN WENGRAF
DISTRICT 3 — BEN BARTLETT DISTRICT 7 — RIGEL ROBINSON
DISTRICT 4 — KATE HARRISON DISTRICT 8 — LORI DROSTE
PUBLIC ADVISORY: THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH

VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e) and the state declared emergency, this meeting of the City
Council will be conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom videoconference. The COVID-19 state of
emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in person and presents imminent
risks to the health of attendees. Therefore, no physical meeting location will be available.

Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on Cable B-TV (Channel 33) and via internet
accessible video stream at http.//berkeley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?publish id=1244.

To access the meeting remotely: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device: Please use this URL
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83640362532. If you do not wish for your name to appear on the screen, then use the
drop down menu and click on "rename" to rename yourself to be anonymous. To request to speak, use the “raise
hand” icon by rolling over the bottom of the screen.

To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free) and enter Meeting ID: 836 4036 2532. If
you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and wait to be recognized by the
Chair.

Please be mindful that the teleconference will be recorded as any Council meeting is recorded, and all other rules
of procedure and decorum will apply for Council meetings conducted by teleconference or videoconference.

To submit a written communication for the City Council’s consideration and inclusion in the public record, email
council@cityofberkeley.info.

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953. Any
member of the public may attend this meeting. Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to Mark
Numainville, City Clerk, (5610) 981-6900. The City Council may take action related to any subject listed on the
Agenda. Meetings will adjourn at 11:00 p.m. - any items outstanding at that time will be carried over to a date/time
to be specified.

Tuesday, November 15, 2022 REVISED AGENDA Page 1
Rev - Page 1


http://berkeley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?publish_id=1244
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83640362532
mailto:council@cityofberkeley.info

Preliminary Matters
Roll Call:

Land Acknowledgement Statement: The City of Berkeley recognizes that the community we
live in was built on the territory of xu¢yun (Huchiun (Hooch-yoon)), the ancestral and unceded land of the
Chochenyo (Cho-chen-yo)-speaking Ohlone (Oh-low-nee) people, the ancestors and descendants of the
sovereign Verona Band of Alameda County. This land was and continues to be of great importance to all
of the Ohlone Tribes and descendants of the Verona Band. As we begin our meeting tonight, we
acknowledge and honor the original inhabitants of Berkeley, the documented 5,000-year history of a
vibrant community at the West Berkeley Shellmound, and the Ohlone people who continue to reside in
the East Bay. We recognize that Berkeley'’s residents have and continue to benefit from the use and
occupation of this unceded stolen land since the City of Berkeley’s incorporation in 1878. As stewards of
the laws regulating the City of Berkeley, it is not only vital that we recognize the history of this land, but
also recognize that the Ohlone people are present members of Berkeley and other East Bay communities
today. The City of Berkeley will continue to build relationships with the Lisjan Tribe and to create
meaningful actions that uphold the intention of this land acknowledgement.

Ceremonial Matters: In addition to those items listed on the agenda, the Mayor may add additional
ceremonial matters.

City Manager Comments: The City Manager may make announcements or provide information to
the City Council in the form of an oral report. The Council will not take action on such items but may
request the City Manager place a report on a future agenda for discussion.

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters: Persons will be selected to address matters not on
the Council agenda. If five or fewer persons wish to speak, each person selected will be allotted two
minutes each. If more than five persons wish to speak, up to ten persons will be selected to address
matters not on the Council agenda and each person selected will be allotted one minute each. The
remainder of the speakers wishing to address the Council on non-agenda items will be heard at the end
of the agenda.

Consent Calendar

The Council will first determine whether to move items on the agenda for “Action” or “Information” to the
“Consent Calendar”, or move “Consent Calendar” items to “Action.” Three members of the City Council
must agree to pull an item from the Consent Calendar or Information Calendar for it to move to Action.
Items that remain on the “Consent Calendar” are voted on in one motion as a group. “Information” items
are not discussed or acted upon at the Council meeting unless they are moved to “Action” or “Consent’.

No additional items can be moved onto the Consent Calendar once public comment has commenced. At
any time during, or immediately after, public comment on Information and Consent items, any
Councilmember may move any Information or Consent item to “Action.” Following this, the Council will
vote on the items remaining on the Consent Calendar in one motion.

For items moved to the Action Calendar from the Consent Calendar or Information Calendar, persons
who spoke on the item during the Consent Calendar public comment period may speak again at the time
the matter is taken up during the Action Calendar.

Tuesday, November 15, 2022 REVISED AGENDA Page 2
Rev - Page 2



Public Comment on Consent Calendar and Information Items Only: The Council will
take public comment on any items that are either on the amended Consent Calendar or the Information
Calendar. Speakers will be entitled to two minutes each to speak in opposition to or support of Consent
Calendar and Information Items. A speaker may only speak once during the period for public comment
on Consent Calendar and Information items.

Additional information regarding public comment by City of Berkeley employees and interns: Employees
and interns of the City of Berkeley, although not required, are encouraged to identify themselves as such,
the department in which they work and state whether they are speaking as an individual or in their official
capacity when addressing the Council in open session or workshops.

Consent Calendar

1.

Minutes for Approval

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Approve the minutes for the Council meetings of September 6
(closed), September 13 (special and regular), September 19 (closed), September 20
(closed, special and regular), September 29 (closed and regular), October 11
(special and regular), October 20 (closed), and October 28 (closed).

Financial Implications: None

Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900

Appointment of the Chief of Police

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution confirming the appointment of Jennifer Louis
as the Chief of Police to be effective November 27, 2022 at an annual salary of
$256,125.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager, (510) 981-7000

Renewal of the EImwood Avenue BID for Calendar Year 2023

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the EImwood Business
Improvement District Advisory Board’s (hereafter “Elmwood BID Advisory Board” or
“the Advisory Board”) recommendation that Council: 1) approve the 2022 Annual
Report and preliminary budget for proposed improvements in the District for calendar
year 2023; 2) declare its intent to levy an assessment to finance improvements in the
District for calendar year 2023 and 3) direct the City Clerk to schedule a public
hearing on the renewal of the assessment for December 6, 2022.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Eleanor Hollander, Economic Development, (510) 981-7530

Tuesday, November 15, 2022 REVISED AGENDA Page 3
Rev - Page 3



Consent Calendar

4. Formal Bid Solicitations and Request for Proposals Scheduled for Possible
Issuance After Council Approval on November 15, 2022
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Approve the request for proposals or invitation for bids (attached
to staff report) that will be, or are planned to be, issued upon final approval by the
requesting department or division. All contracts over the City Manager’s threshold
will be returned to Council for final approval.
Financial Implications: Various Funds - $11,384,039
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300

5. Contract: Station Automation Inc., DBA PSTrax for Real-time, Paperless Check-
off and Asset Management Software
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a
contract with Station Automation Inc., DBA PSTrax for real-time, paperless check-off
and asset management software, for a total amount not to exceed $125,000.
Financial Implications: Measure Q Fund - $125,000
Contact: David Sprague, Fire, (510) 981-3473

6. Contract No. 32000116 Amendment Genasys, Inc. for Outdoor Warning System
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an
amendment to Contract No. 32000116 with Genasys, Inc. for Outdoor Warning
System, increasing the amount by $200,000 for a total not to exceed amount of
$2,174,457.
Financial Implications: Measure FF Public Safety - $200,000
Contact: David Sprague, Fire, (510) 981-3473

7. Contract: Harold Dichoso for Providing Temporary Consulting Services for the
Health, Housing, and Community Services (HHCS) Department.
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a
contract, with any amendments, with Harold Dichoso for providing consulting
services to the Department of Health, Housing, and Community Services Office of
the Director related to the Health Justice Internship Program for a term of 8 months.
The total not-to-exceed contract amount is $90,000.
Financial Implications: Bioterrorism Grant Fund - $90,000
Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400

Tuesday, November 15, 2022 REVISED AGENDA Page 4
Rev - Page 4



Consent Calendar

10.

Measure P: Contract No. 31900273 Amendment- Bay Area Community Services
(BACS) North County Housing Resource Center — Shallow Subsidy Program
and Contract No. 32200051 Amendment: WeHOPE for Mobile Showers and
Laundry Services

From: City Manager

Recommendation:

1. Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her designee to execute an
amendment to Contract No. 31900273 with Bay Area Community Services (BACS)
to amend the scope of work to shift up to $637,550 in unspent funds from the
Measure P General Fund - funded Shallow Subsidy Program to a Flexible Funding
Pool Program.

2. Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her designee to execute an
amendment to Contract No. 32200051 with WeHOPE to add $127,380 for an amount
not to exceed $375,667 to provide mobile shower and laundry services through June
30, 2023.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400

New Classification Deputy City Attorney IV

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution to expand the Deputy City Attorney series by
establishing the Deputy City Attorney IV classification with a monthly stepped salary
range of $15,936.37 - $19,593.60 effective November 15, 2022.

Financial Implications: None

Contact: Donald E. Ellison, Human Resources, (510) 981-6800

Amendments to On-Call Waterfront Engineering, Design, Environmental
Permitting and Construction Administration Services Contract No. 32000261
with COWI North America, Inc, and Contract No. 32000263 with Transystems
Corporation

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt two Resolutions authorizing the City Manager to execute
amendments to Contract No. 32000261 with COWI North America, Inc., and
Contract No. 32000263 with Transystems Corporation, for on-call waterfront
engineering, design, environmental permitting and construction administration
services by increasing the contract amount by $1,000,000 and the duration by twelve
months each, from June 30, 2023 through June 30, 2024, to a total not-to-exceed
amount of $2,000,000 each.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, (510) 981-6700

Tuesday, November 15, 2022 REVISED AGENDA Page 5

Rev - Page 5



Consent Calendar

11. Contract Awards: Sharjo, Inc. dba ServiceMaster Recovery Management and
Belfor USA Group, Inc. for on-call Emergency Restoration, Mitigation and
Remediation Services
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt two Resolutions authorizing the City Manager or designee
to execute the following contracts for on-call emergency restoration, mitigation and
remediation services, each for a period of December 1, 2022 through December 31,
2025:

1. Sharjo, Inc. dba ServiceMaster Recovery Management for an amount not to
exceed $150,000.

2. Belfor USA Group, Inc. for an amount not to exceed $150,000.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300

12. Contract No. 10413B Amendment: LAZ Parking LLC for Managing City-Owned
Off-Street Parking Facilities
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an
amendment to Contract No. 10413B with LAZ Parking, LLC, a parking management
company, to provide management services for the Telegraph Channing, Oxford, and
Center Street Garages, extending the term to December 31, 2024 and increasing the
contract amount by $5,162,424 for a total not-to-exceed of $16,252,375.
Financial Implications: Off-Street Parking Fund - $5,162,424
Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300

13. Contract No. 10340 (ERMA 111976-1) Amendment: HF&H Consultants, LLC for
the Update of Rate Model
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an
amendment to Contract No. 10340 (ERMA 111976-1) with HF&H Consultants, LLC
for the Update of the Zero Waste Rate Schedules, extending the term to June 30,
2025, and increasing the contract by $75,000 for a total contract amount not to
exceed $325,000.
Financial Implications: Zero Waste Fund - $75,000
Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300

14. Contract No. 117610-1 Amendment Columbia Electric, Inc. for On-Call
Electrical Services
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to amend
Contract No. 117610-1 with Columbia Electrical, Inc., increasing the current contract
by $300,000 for a total not to exceed amount of $375,000 and extending the contract
through June 30, 2025.
Financial Implications: General Fund - $300,000
Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300

Tuesday, November 15, 2022 REVISED AGENDA Page 6
Rev - Page 6



Consent Calendar

15. Sewer and Access Road Easement and Installation Agreements with Paulonia
Investment, LLC and Little Tree Investment, Inc., and James Robert Higgins
and Summary Vacation of Existing Sewer Easements
From: City Manager
Recommendation:

1. Adopt first readings of three Ordinances authorizing the City Manager to execute
easement and installation agreements and any amendments for sewer pipe facilities
with:

A. Paulonia Investment, LLC and Little Tree Investment, Inc. for extending,
operating, maintaining, and accessing sewer pipe facilities on parcel with APN 063-
2969-034-23, and

B. James Robert Higgins for extending, operating, maintaining and accessing sewer
pipe facilities on 1033 Miller Avenue (APN 063-2969-034-25) and

C. Paulonia Investment, LLC and Little Tree Investment, Inc. on parcel with APN:
063-2969-034-44 for accessing sewer pipe facilities.

2. Adopt a Resolution to summarily vacate the existing sewer right-of-way easement
and sewer reserve easement on parcel with APN 063-2969-034-23.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300

16. Reinstate Burma (Myanmar) on Berkeley’s Oppressive States List
From: Peace and Justice Commission
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution to reinstate Burma (Myanmar) on Berkeley’s
Oppressive States list; to urge the federal government to strengthen sanctions on the
military regime including on its Myanmar Oil and Gas Enterprises (MOGE), and to
recognize and support the Burma National Unity Government (NUG), including
ensuring the continued representation of Burma at the United Nations by U Kyaw
More Tun. Send copies of the Resolution to the congressional delegation and other
federal leaders.
Financial Implications: Staff time
Contact: Okeya Vance-Dozier, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-7100

Council Consent Items

17. United Against Hate Week 2022
From: Mayor Arreguin (Author), Councilmember Wengraf (Co-Sponsor),
Councilmember Hahn (Co-Sponsor)
Recommendation:
1. Adopt a Resolution declaring November 13th — 19th, 2022 as United Against Hate
Week.
2. Adopt a Resolution approving the D-13 expenditure in an amount not to exceed
$250 per Councilmember, to support the film screening of “Repairing the World” in
Berkeley with residuals going to Not in Our Town for United Against Hate Week.
Financial Implications: Mayor’s Discretionary Funds - $250
Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, (510) 981-7100

Tuesday, November 15, 2022 REVISED AGENDA Page 7
Rev - Page 7



Council Consent Items

18. Resolution Supporting Removal of Cuba from the U.S. State Sponsor of
Terrorism List
From: Councilmember Harrison (Author), Councilmember Wengraf (Co-
Sponsor), Mayor Arreguin (Co-Sponsor)
Recommendation:
1. Adopt Resolution supporting removal of Cuba from the U.S. State Sponsor of
Terrorism List; and
2. Refer to the City Clerk to send copies of the resolution and letters to
Representative Lee and Senators Feinstein and Padilla.
Financial Implications: Staff time
Contact: Kate Harrison, Councilmember, District 4, (510) 981-7140

19. Adopt an Ordinance Adding a Chapter 11.62 to the Berkeley Municipal Code to
Regulate the Use of Carryout and Produce Bags and Promote the Use of
Reusable Bags (Reviewed by the Facilities, Infrastructure, Transportation,
Environment & Sustainability Committee)

From: Councilmember Harrison (Author), Councilmember Hahn (Author)
Recommendation:

1. Adopt an ordinance adding a Chapter 11.62 to the Berkeley Municipal Code to
regulate the use of carryout and produce bags and promote the use of reusable bags
with a phased enforcement and implementation approach, effective with respect to
new charges for bags pursuant to Sections 11.63.040 and 11.63.050 and provisions
applicable to the City of Berkeley and City-sponsored events pursuant to Section
11.63.090 on January 1, 2023, and administrative regulations for and all provisions in
this ordinance effective June 30, 2023.

2. Refer to the City Manager and Public Works to consider a Zero Waste rate
modification with an anticipated net-zero impact on General Fund to provide
additional staffing capacity consistent with business and community outreach,
support services, implementation, and phased enforcement of this ordinance and
other plastic reduction ordinances. Out of an abundance of caution, and in the event
that additional or alternative staffing resources are needed beyond a potential rate
increase, refer to the Fiscal Year 2023 AAO #1 Budget Process up to $350,000 per
year for staffing for this ordinance and other plastic reduction ordinances.

Policy Committee Recommendation: To approve the item with a positive
recommendation.

Financial Implications: Staff Time - $350,000 per year

Contact: Kate Harrison, Councilmember, District 4, (510) 981-7140

Tuesday, November 15, 2022 REVISED AGENDA Page 8
Rev - Page 8



Council Consent Items

20.

21.

22,

The Berkeley Baby Book Project: Relinquishment of Council Office Budget
Funds from General Funds and Grant of Such Funds

From: Councilmember Wengraf (Author), Councilmember Bartlett (Co-
Sponsor), Councilmember Hahn (Co-Sponsor)

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the expenditure of an amount not
to exceed $125 per Councilmember, including $125 from Councilmember Wengraf,
to support the Berkeley Baby Book Project, a non-profit, with funds relinquished to
the City’s general fund. The relinquishment of funds from Councilmember Wengraf
and all other Councilmembers who would like to contribute, will provide books to
Berkeley children aged 0-5 years. The books are delivered by USPS and addressed
to the child who owns them at no cost to their family. $125 covers one book delivered
to one child every month for 5 years.

Financial Implications: Councilmember's Discretionary Funds - $125

Contact: Susan Wengraf, Councilmember, District 6, (510) 981-7160

Budget Referral: Closing the Southside Complete Streets Funding Gap

From: Councilmember Robinson (Author), Mayor Arreguin (Co-Sponsor),
Councilmember Hahn (Co-Sponsor)

Recommendation: Refer $1,000,000 to the FY 2023 AAO #1 process to contribute
to closing the funding gap for the Southside Complete Streets project to ensure that
construction on Bancroft, Dana, & Fulton can proceed on schedule and to prevent
the loss of $7.3M in federal funding.

Financial Implications: $1,000,000

Contact: Rigel Robinson, Councilmember, District 7, (510) 981-7170

Referral: Establishing an Electric Bike Rebate Program and Expanding Low-
Income E-Bike Ownership through the Climate Equity Action Fund

From: Councilmember Robinson (Author), Councilmember Harrison (Author),
Councilmember Taplin (Author), Councilmember Hahn (Co-Sponsor)
Recommendation: Refer to the City Manager to establish a two-tiered point-of-sale
rebate program to reduce the up-front cost of electric bicycles and necessary safety
and security accessories for Berkeley residents, including: -Rebate Level 1: a point-
of-sale rebate to be made available to all City of Berkeley residents; -Rebate Level 2:
a point-of-sale rebate that covers a higher percentage of the cost than Rebate Level
1, to be made available to low-income City of Berkeley residents.

Refer $500,000 to the FY 2023 AAO #1 process as follows: -$400,000 for the point
of sale rebate program; -$100,000 in supplementary funding towards the Climate
Equity Action Fund (CEAF) to further facilitate e-bike ownership among low-income
Berkeley residents.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Rigel Robinson, Councilmember, District 7, (510) 981-7170

Action Calendar

The public may comment on each item listed on the agenda for action as the item is taken up. For items
moved to the Action Calendar from the Consent Calendar or Information Calendar, persons who spoke on
the item during the Consent Calendar public comment period may speak again at the time the matter is
taken up during the Action Calendar.

Tuesday, November 15, 2022 REVISED AGENDA Page 9

Rev - Page 9



Action Calendar

The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing to speak use the "raise hand" function to determine
the number of persons interested in speaking at that time. Up to ten (10) speakers may speak for two
minutes. If there are more than ten persons interested in speaking, the Presiding Officer may limit the
public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker. Speakers are permitted to yield their time to
one other speaker, however no one speaker shall have more than four minutes. The Presiding Officer may,
with the consent of persons representing both sides of an issue, allocate a block of time to each side to
present their issue.

Action items may be reordered at the discretion of the Chair with the consent of Council.

Action Calendar — Public Hearings

Staff shall introduce the public hearing item and present their comments. This is followed by five-minute
presentations each by the appellant and applicant. The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing
to speak use the "raise hand" function to be recognized and to determine the number of persons interested
in speaking at that time.

Up to ten (10) speakers may speak for two minutes. If there are more than ten persons interested in
speaking, the Presiding Officer may limit the public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker.
The Presiding Officer may with the consent of persons representing both sides of an issue allocate a block
of time to each side to present their issue.

Each member of the City Council shall verbally disclose all ex parte contacts concerning the subject of the
hearing. Councilmembers shall also submit a report of such contacts in writing prior to the commencement
of the hearing. Written reports shall be available for public review in the office of the City Clerk.

23. Adoption of the 2022 California Fire Code with Local Amendments
From: City Manager
Recommendation:
1. Adopt the first reading of an Ordinance repealing the Berkeley Fire Code
(Berkeley Municipal Chapter 19.48) and reenacting BMC Chapter 19.48;
2. Adopt a Resolution setting forth findings of local conditions that require more
stringent building standards than those provided by the 2022 California Fire Code
(“CFC”) and rescinding Resolution number 69,178—N.S.;
3. Conduct a public hearing and upon conclusion, adopt a Resolution establishing
annual permit fees, inspection and billing rates for inspection of property sites by the
Berkeley Fire Department, and rescinding Resolution number 69,179-N.S. and all
Resolutions amendatory thereof.
4. In compliance with state law on adopting such codes by reference, hold a public
hearing following the first reading and before the second reading, and schedule the
public hearing for December 6, 2022.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: David Sprague, Fire, (510) 981-3473

Tuesday, November 15, 2022 REVISED AGENDA Page 10
Rev - Page 10



Action Calendar — Public Hearings

24. Implement Residential Preferential Parking (RPP) Program on the 1900 Block
of Vine Street and the 3000 Block of Martin Luther King Jr. Way
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and upon its conclusion, adopt a
Resolution amending Resolution No. 56,508-N.S. Section 25E and Section 25M by
adding a subsection to implement Residential Preferential Parking (RPP) on both
sides of the 1900 Block of Vine Street in RPP Area E and the west side of the 3000
Block of Martin Luther King Jr. Way in RPP Area M.
Financial Implications: See report.
Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300

Action Calendar — New Business

25. Update on BPD efforts related to the Improving Hate Crimes Reporting and
Response Referral
From: City Manager
Contact: Jennifer Louis, Police, (510) 981-5900

Action Calendar — Continued Business — Public Hearings

Staff shall introduce the public hearing item and present their comments. This is followed by five-minute
presentations each by the appellant and applicant. The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing
to speak use the "raise hand" function to be recognized and to determine the number of persons interested
in speaking at that time.

Up to ten (10) speakers may speak for two minutes. If there are more than ten persons interested in
speaking, the Presiding Officer may limit the public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker.
The Presiding Officer may with the consent of persons representing both sides of an issue allocate a block
of time to each side to present their issue.

Each member of the City Council shall verbally disclose all ex parte contacts concerning the subject of the
hearing. Councilmembers shall also submit a report of such contacts in writing prior to the commencement
of the hearing. Written reports shall be available for public review in the office of the City Clerk.

A. ZAB Appeal: 2018 Blake Street, Use Permit #2P2021-0095 (Continued from
November 3, 2022) (Item contains supplemental material)
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and, upon conclusion, adopt a
Resolution affirming the Zoning Adjustments Board (ZAB) decision to approve Use
Permit #2P2021-0095 to construct a six-story, multi-family residential building with
12 units (including two Low-Income units), and dismiss the appeal.
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Jordan Klein, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400

Tuesday, November 15, 2022 REVISED AGENDA Page 11
Rev - Page 11



Action Calendar — Continued Business — Public Hearings

B. ZAB Appeal: 1643-1647 California Street, Use Permit #2P2021-0001 (Continued
from November 3, 2022)
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and, upon conclusion, adopt a
Resolution affirming the Zoning Adjustments Board (ZAB) decision to approve Use
Permit #2P2021-0001 to: 1) create a new lower basement level, 2) construct a new
second story, and 3) modify the existing duplex layout resulting in a 3,763 square
foot duplex on an existing property, and dismiss the appeal.
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Jordan Klein, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400

Information Reports

26. LPO NOD: 2119 Marin Avenue/#LMIN2022-0002
From: City Manager
Contact: Jordan Klein, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400

27. LPO NOD: 1325 Arch Street/#LMSAP2022-0007
From: City Manager
Contact: Jordan Klein, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400

28. LPO NOD: 2081 Center Street/#LMSAP2022-0006
From: City Manager
Contact: Jordan Klein, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400

29. LPO NOD: 2109 Kala Bagai Way/#LMSAP2022-0008
From: City Manager
Contact: Jordan Klein, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400

Public Comment — Items Not Listed on the Agenda

Adjournment

NOTICE CONCERNING YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS: If you object to a decision by the City Council to
approve or deny a use permit or variance for a project the following requirements and restrictions apply:
1) No lawsuit challenging a City decision to deny (Code Civ. Proc. §1094.6(b)) or approve (Gov. Code
65009(c)(5)) a use permit or variance may be filed more than 90 days after the date the Notice of
Decision of the action of the City Council is mailed. Any lawsuit not filed within that 90-day period will be
barred. 2) In any lawsuit that may be filed against a City Council decision to approve or deny a use
permit or variance, the issues and evidence will be limited to those raised by you or someone else, orally
or in writing, at a public hearing or prior to the close of the last public hearing on the project.

Archived indexed video streams are available at:
https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/city-council/city-council-agendas.
Channel 33 rebroadcasts the following Wednesday at 9:00 a.m. and Sunday at 9:00 a.m.

Communications to the City Council are public record and will become part of the City’s electronic
records, which are accessible through the City’s website. Please note: e-mail addresses, names,
addresses, and other contact information are not required, but if included in any communication

Tuesday, November 15, 2022 REVISED AGENDA Page 12
Rev - Page 12


https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/city-council/city-council-agendas

to the City Council, will become part of the public record. If you do not want your e-mail address or
any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service
to the City Clerk Department at 2180 Milvia Street. If you do not want your contact information included in
the public record, please do not include that information in your communication. Please contact the City
Clerk Department for further information.

Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this agenda
will be made available for public inspection at the public counter at the City Clerk Department located on
the first floor of City Hall located at 2180 Milvia Street as well as posted on the City's website at
https://berkeleyca.gov/.

Agendas and agenda reports may be accessed via the Internet at:
https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/city-council/city-council-agendas
and may be read at reference desks at the following locations:

City Clerk Department - 2180 Milvia Street, First Floor
Tel: 510-981-6900, TDD: 510-981-6903, Fax: 510-981-6901
Email: clerk@cityofberkeley.info

Libraries: Main — 2090 Kittredge Street,
Claremont Branch — 2940 Benvenue, West Branch — 1125 University,
North Branch — 1170 The Alameda, South Branch — 1901 Russell

COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION:
To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or

services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at (510) 981-6418 (V) or (510) 981-6347 (TDD)
at least three business days before the meeting date.

&

Captioning services are provided at the meeting, on B-TV, and on the Internet.

I hereby certify that the agenda for this meeting of the Berkeley City Council was posted at the
display case located near the walkway in front of the Maudelle Shirek Building, 2134 Martin Luther
King Jr. Way, as well as on the City’s website, on November 8, 2022.

Mk Mssivid)

Mark Numainville, City Clerk

Communications

Council rules limit action on Communications to referral to the City Manager and/or Boards and
Commissions for investigation and/or recommendations. All communications submitted to Council are
public record. Copies of individual communications are available for viewing at the City Clerk Department
and through Records Online.

Adeline Street Redesign
1. Pablo Diaz-Gutierrez
2. Jane Scantlebury

3. Tommaso Sciortino

Tuesday, November 15, 2022 REVISED AGENDA Page 13
Rev - Page 13


https://berkeleyca.gov/
https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/city-council/city-council-agendas
https://records.cityofberkeley.info/

4. Teresa Clarke
5. Abbie Turiansky
6. John Givens

7. Jeffrey Wescott
8. Laura Stevens
9. Sabina McMurtry
10.Nat Kane

All-Day All-Night Festival Noise
11.Kelly Zito

State Required Housing — RHNA Housing Allocation
12.Margaret Pritt

Catalytic Converter Crime
13.Karl Reeh

Energy Efficient Holidays
14.Christopher La Combe

RHS
15.Anna Avellar

Hopkins Corridor

16. Todd Andrew
17.Margot Smith
18.Luther Miller
19.Evelyn Larsen
20.Meg and Dan Holm
21.Joshua Bloom
22.David Kessler
23.Lisa Oglesby

24 . Commission on Aging

Measure L
25.Finance Department (2)
26.Justin Lee

COVID-19 Masking Policies
27.Rainbow Rubin

UC Berkeley Safety Concerns
28.Maria Rosino-Miracco

Hearst Garden/Cottages at 1155-1173 Hearst Avenue
29.Tracey Emerson

Tuesday, November 15, 2022 REVISED AGENDA Page 14
Rev - Page 14



30.Dale Anania

Housing Element

31.Janis Ching

32.Richard lligen

33.Rahel Smith

34.Natalie Hanson

35. 18 similarly-worded form letters

Middle Housing
36.Kyle Scott

Live Transcription
37.Max Ventura
38.Margot Smith

People’s Park
39.Holly Scott Cayce
40.Marc Sapir
41.Dale Alexander

5G Forests
42 Vivian Warkentin

Phone Bank Lists
43.Samuel Kim, on behalf of Racial Justice and Advocacy Program

1600 Block Woolsey Health and Safety Issues
44.Joshua Landerfelt (2)

Native Landscaping — Less-Thirsty
45.Franziska Raedeker

Codornices Creek Issue
46.Friends of Five Creeks (2)
47.Peter Radu, on behalf of Neighborhood Services

1201-1205 San Pablo Avenue
48.Reed Schwartz
49.Tony Benado

Parking Ticket
50.Dawn Howard

2065 Kittredge Street — Appeal Use Permit #ZP2021-0193
51.Alisha Pember, on behalf of Adams Broadwell Joseph and Cardozo

Tuesday, November 15, 2022 REVISED AGENDA Page 15
Rev - Page 15



Crime in Berkeley
52.Tony Benado
53. Alexander Merenkov

Segregation in Berkeley Persists
54.Aimee Baldwin

Neighborhood Noise
55.Paola Bacchetta

AT&T Box Safety Hazard
56.Immanuel Buder

Supplemental Communications and Reports
Items received by the deadlines for submission will be compiled and distributed as follows. If no items
are received by the deadline, no supplemental packet will be compiled for said deadline.

e Supplemental Communications and Reports 1
Available by 5:00 p.m. five days prior to the meeting.

e Supplemental Communications and Reports 2
Available by 5:00 p.m. the day before the meeting.

e Supplemental Communications and Reports 3
Available by 5:00 p.m. two days following the meeting.

Tuesday, November 15, 2022 REVISED AGENDA Page 16
Rev - Page 16



Page 1 of 93

Office of the City Manager

SUPPLEMENTAL
AGENDA MATERIAL

for Supplemental Packet 1

Meeting Date: November 3, 2022

Item Number: 33

Item Description: ZAB Appeal — 2018 Blake Street (Use Permit #Z2P2021-0095)
Submitted by: Jordan Klein, Director, Planning and Development Department

On October 11, 2022, Council conducted a hearing on an appeal of the decision of the
Zoning Adjustments Board to approve a development application for the property at
2018 Blake Street. During the hearing, members of City Council identified errors in
Attachment 1, Exhibit A Findings and Conditions, and also raised a number of
outstanding questions. City Council continued the public hearing to November 3, 2022
and requested that the City Manager provide resolution on paragraphs 49 and 50 of the
Findings and Conditions, and provide information on the requirement for an on-site
manager unit.

This supplemental material includes corrections to Attachment 1, Exhibit A Findings and
Conditions and a memo that describes the corrections, and addresses the potential
requirement for an on-site manager unit.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903  Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager ev - Page 17



mailto:manager@CityofBerkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
A


Page 2 of 93

ZAB Appeal: 2018 Blake Street Supplemental Packet 1
Use Permit #Z2P2021-0095 November 3, 2022

This memo provides background information regarding compliance with the City of
Berkeley’s affordable housing mitigation fee requirements for new housing
developments, corrections to Attachment 1, Exhibit A Findings and Conditions, and the
requirement of an on-site manager unit.

Background on Affordable Housing Requirements

BMC Section 22.20.065 establishes an affordable housing mitigation fee program for
rental housing that was adopted in response to the Palmer decision, which prohibited
local agencies from establishing base rents for new rental units. The default method of
compliance is the payment of a mitigation fee for the impact of new development on the
affordability of housing in the city. That fee is collected on a per-unit basis; i.e., projects
pay the fee according to the current rate multiplied by the number of units at the time of
issuance of a building permit ($43,185 per unit), or at a slightly higher rate if the fee is
paid at the time of occupancy ($46,185 per unit).

An alternative means of compliance is to provide deed-restricted affordable housing
units in the project. To fully avoid paying the fee, these units must equal 20% of the total
number of units in the project, and must include very-low-income and low-income units.
According to the ordinance, in “projects providing more than one below market rate unit
(meaning the combination of Low-income Units and Very Low-Income Units), at least
50% of the units shall be affordable to Very Low-income Households. When there is an
uneven number of units provided under this ordinance, the majority of the below market
rate units shall be Very Low-Income units.”

According to the ordinance and guidelines, affordable units must be equally distributed
among the unit types and locations of all units in the project.

If the project elects to provide affordable units in lieu of payment of a portion of, or the
entire fee, then prior to the issuance of a building permit, the project proponent enters
into a regulatory agreement with the City to implement unit affordability requirements in
compliance with the affordable housing mitigation fee and density bonus laws. The
regulatory agreement is submitted to the Health, Housing and Community Services
Department for review and approval, and payment of fees is required prior to building
occupancy.

Corrections to Attachment 1, Exhibit A Findings and Conditions

Council noted that there were inconsistencies among some of the conditions of
approval, project description and staff report analysis. The project was originally
submitted with one very-low-income unit intended to satisfy this requirement. During the
review process, the project was revised to include two low-income units. These units
were intended to qualify the project for a density bonus under State law, Government
Code 65915, which provides a 50% bonus for providing 15% very-low-income units or
for providing 24% low-income units.

This revision resulted in a discrepancy between the density bonus and local inclusionary
requirements. As a result, the project as proposed would have obtained a density bonus
but would have been required to pay a mitigation fee for all of the units (no credit would
be provided under the local inclusionary ordinance). The project proponents could have

Page 2 Rev - Page 18



Page 3 of 93

ZAB Appeal: 2018 Blake Street Supplemental Packet 1
Use Permit #Z2P2021-0095 November 3, 2022

proceeded with that outcome, or they could have revised the project up to the time of
obtaining a certificate of occupancy to enter into a regulatory agreement for inclusionary
units and/or a fee. The final arrangement would have been reviewed for compliance
with all applicable regulations and approved as part of the normal course of closing out
the use permit and building permit.

The draft conditions of approval have been amended to clarify that any combination of
units and fees may be used to satisfy the inclusionary ordinance, and that units must be
provided to satisfy density bonus law, without specifying precisely how that would be
accomplished, because it is the applicant’s prerogative to determine the method of
compliance.

City Council also noted that the table included in Condition 51, which establishes the
applicable area median income for the purpose of determining the allowable rent for
each unit, did not include rows for four- and five-bedroom units (which the project
includes). The table has been expanded to include the larger sized units. (Note that the
numbering of the Conditions in the document has changed due these revisions.)

On-Site Manager

The California Code of Regulations provides, at Title 25, section 42, that a manager,
janitor, housekeeper, or other responsible person shall reside upon the premises and
shall have charge of every apartment house in which there are 16 or more apartments,
and of every hotel in which there are 12 or more guest rooms, in the event that the
owner of an apartment house or hotel does not reside upon said premises. Only one
caretaker would be required for all structures under one ownership and on one
contiguous parcel of land. If the owner does not reside upon the premises of any
apartment house in which there are more than four but less than 16 apartments, a
notice stating the owner's name and address, or the name and address of the owner's
agent in charge of the apartment house, shall be posted in a conspicuous place on the
premises. This provision is echoed in the BMC, Title 19, as part of the Housing Code.

The City must establish a nexus based on substantial evidence in order to impose

a condition of approval requiring an onsite manager. Existing regulations do not
require that a 12-unit building must have an on-site manager. However, the special
design characteristics of this project could indicate a need for an on-site manager, due
to the high number of bedrooms / residents, regardless of the unit count. Also, Group
Living Accommodation (GLA) regulations, which may be analogous if not directly
applicable, indicate that an off-site manager and on-site responsible resident will be
provided for a project with more than 15 residents.

Page 3 Rev - Page 19



Page 4 of 93

ATTACHMENT 1, EXHIBIT A

FINDINGS AND CONDITIONS
NOVEMBER 3, 2022

2018 Blake Street

Use Permit #2P2021-0095 to construct a six-story, multi-family residential building
with 12 dwelling units.

PERMITS REQUIRED

Use Permit under Berkeley Municipal Code (BMC) Section 23.202.020(A) to construct a multifamily
residential building

Use Permit under BMC Section 23.202.110(E)(2) to construct a main building that exceeds 35 feet
in average height and three stories, up to 65 feet and six stories

Administrative Use Permit under BMC Section 23.304.050(A) to construct rooftop projections, such
as mechanical appurtenances or architectural elements which exceed the maximum height limit for
the district.

CONCESSIONS/ WAIVERS UNDER GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 65915-65918

No concessions

Waiver of BMC Section 23.202.110(E)(1) to reduce minimum side setback (above the 2" floor) and
rear yard setback (above the 3 floor)

Waiver of BMC Section 23.202.110(E)(2) to exceed lot coverage

CEQA FINDINGS

1. The project is categorically exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA, Public Resources Code §21000, et seq. and California Code of Regulations,
§15000, et seq.) pursuant to §15332 (“In-Fill Development Projects”).

The project meets all of the requirements of this exemption, as follows:

A. The project is consistent with the applicable General Plan designation and policies, and
with the applicable zoning designation and regulations.

B. The project occurs within the Berkeley City limits on a project site of no more than five
acres, and is surrounded by urban uses.

C. The parcels within the project site have previously been developed and have no value as
habitat for endangered, rare or threatened species.

D. The project would not result in any significant effects relating to traffic, noise, air quality or
water quality. The Traffic Impact Analysis prepared for the project was reviewed by the
City Transportation Division which concurred with the findings of less than significant
impacts. City Standard Conditions would address potential impacts related to traffic,
noise, air quality, and water quality.

E. The site can be adequately served by all required utilities and public services.

2. Furthermore, none of the exceptions in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2 apply, as follows:

(a) the site is not located in an environmentally sensitive area, (b) there are no cumulative
impacts, (c) there are no significant effects, (d) the project is not located near a scenic highway,
(e) the project site is not located on a hazardous waste site pursuant to Government Code
Section 65962.5, and (f) the project would not affect any historical resource.

1947 Center Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 Tel: 510.981.7410 TDD: 510.981.7474 Fax: 510.981.7420 Rev - Page 20
E-mail: zab@cityofberkeley.info



Page 5 of 93

2018 BLAKE STREET - USE PERMIT #ZP2021-0095 FINDINGS & CONDITIONS
November 3, 2022 Page 2 of 17

Il. DENSITY BONUS FINDINGS

1.

2.

Pursuant to Government Code Section 65915, the City Council finds that:

A. Under the City’'s methodology for implementing density bonuses, the “base project’
consists of 8 units;

B. The project will provide qualifying units in the eight-unit “base project”, as more fully set
forth in Conditions 48 to 52;

C. The project is entitled to a density increase of 50 percent over the otherwise maximum
allowable residential density under the Zoning Ordinance and General Plan Land Use
Element, under the requirements of Government Code Section 65915(b) and (f). This
equates to a density bonus of four units above the Base Project, for a total of 12 units.

In accordance with Government Code Section 65915(e) the City Council hereby grants the

following waivers:

A. Waiver of BMC Section 23.202.110(E)(1) to reduce minimum side setback (above the 2nd
floor) and rear yard setback (above the 3rd floor)

B. Waiver of BMC Section 23.202.110(E)(2) to exceed lot coverage

State law requires the City to modify development standards as necessary to accommodate
the density bonus units. These waivers are consistent with the City’s guidelines for
implementation of State density bonus law because they retain fidelity between the base
project and density bonus project while accommodating the housing development project.

In accordance with Government Code Section 65915(e), in order to allow construction of the
proposed project with the density permitted under State law, the City Council finds approval of
waivers is required to construct the proposed project at the density permitted under State law;
approval of requested waivers would not have a specific adverse impact upon public health
and safety, or the physical environment, or on any real property listed in the California Register
of Historical Resources; and approval of the requested waivers would not be contrary to State
or Federal law.

lll. FINDINGS FOR APPROVAL

1.

2.

The Housing Accountability Act, Government Code Section 65589.5(j) requires that when a

proposed housing development complies with applicable, objective general plan and zoning

standards, a local agency may not deny the project or approve it with reduced density unless

the agency makes written findings supported by substantial evidence that:

A. The development would have a specific adverse impact on public health or safety unless
disapproved or approved at a lower density; and

B. There is no feasible method to satisfactorily mitigate or avoid the specific adverse impact,
other than the disapproval or approval at a lower density.

Because the Base Project would comply with applicable, objective general plan and zoning
standards, §65589.5(j) applies to this project. No significant, quantifiable, direct and unavoidable
impacts, based on objective, identified written public health or safety standards, polices, or
conditions, have been identified. The project, with density bonus units, includes construction of
12 dwelling units at an average size of 1,053 square feet.

As required by Section 23.406.040(E)(1) of the BMC, the City Council finds that the project,
under the circumstances of this particular case existing at the time at which the application is

File: C:\Users\tbenado\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\ER8BSN5C\2022-1 1-03_CC_ATT1A_DRAFR§Q_20F%e2 1
(002).docx



Page 6 of 93

2018 BLAKE STREET - USE PERMIT #ZP2021-0095 FINDINGS & CONDITIONS
November 3, 2022 Page 3 of 17

granted, would not be detrimental to the health, safety, peace, morals, comfort, and general

welfare of the persons residing or working in the neighborhood of such proposed use or be

detrimental or injurious to property and improvements of the adjacent properties, the
surrounding area or neighborhood, or to the general welfare of the City because:

A. The base project is consistent with all applicable R-4 District standards that establish the
maximum allowable gross residential density and the project qualifies for waivers of the
listed district standards granted pursuant to State Density Bonus, Government Code
Section 65915;

B. The project follows a trend of increasing density in the neighborhood, including the recently-
constructed, five-story, mixed-use building at 2029 Blake Street, the approved use permit
for a six-story, community care facility for seniors at 2000 Dwight Way, and the approved
use permit for a seven-story, multi-family building at 2015 Blake. The proposed project will
provide new housing in a location with easy access to public transit and nearby commercial
services and stores, and will fulfill the purpose of the R-4 Multi-Family Residential District
by providing high-density residential development with sufficient usable open space at a
convenient location for desirable services.

C. Shadow impact on adjacent dwellings to the west, east, and northeast will result from the
new building. However, the shadow impacts on any one adjacent property will occur during
limited hours and times of the year. Furthermore, shadow impacts on adjacent dwellings
are difficult to avoid given the lot widths, height and building-to-building separations
permitted in the R-4 district. Therefore, the shadow impacts are found to be reasonable and
non-detrimental.

D. The project is subject to the City’s standard conditions of approval regarding construction
noise and air quality, waste diversion, toxics, and stormwater requirements, thereby
ensuring the project would not be detrimental to the health, safety, peace, morals, comfort
or general welfare of persons residing or working in the area or neighborhood of such
proposed use or be detrimental or injurious to property and improvements of the adjacent
properties, the surrounding area or neighborhood or to the general welfare of the City.

File: C:\Users\tbenado\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\ER8BSN5C\2022-1 1-03_CC_ATT1A_DRAFR§Q_20F%e22
(002).docx



Page 7 of 93

2018 BLAKE STREET - USE PERMIT #ZP2021-0095 FINDINGS & CONDITIONS
November 3, 2022 Page 4 of 17

IV. STANDARD CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR ALL PROJECTS

The following conditions, as well as all other applicable provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, apply to
this Permit:

1.

Conditions and Shall be Printed on Plans

The conditions of this Permit shall be printed on the second sheet of each plan set submitted for
a building permit pursuant to this Use Permit, under the title ‘Use Permit Conditions.” Additional
Sheets may also be used if the second sheet is not of sufficient size to list all of the conditions.
The sheet(s) containing the conditions shall be of the same size as those sheets containing the
construction drawings; 8-1/2” by 11” sheets are not acceptable.

Compliance Required (BMC Section 23.102.050)

All land uses and structures in Berkeley must comply with the Zoning Ordinance and all
applicable City ordinances and regulations. Compliance with the Zoning Ordinance does not
relieve an applicant from requirements to comply with other federal, state, and City regulations
that also apply to the property.

Approval Limited to Proposed Project and Replacement of Existing Uses (BMC Sections

23.404.060.B.1 and 2)

A. This Permit authorizes only the proposed project described in the application. In no way
does an approval authorize other uses, structures or activities not included in the project
description.

B. When the City approves a new use that replaces an existing use, any prior approval of the
existing use becomes null and void when permits for the new use are exercised (e.g.,
building permit or business license issued). To reestablish the previously existing use, an
applicant must obtain all permits required by the Zoning Ordinance for the use.

Conformance to Approved Plans (BMC Section 23.404.060.B.4)
All work performed under an approved permit shall be in compliance with the approved plans
and any conditions of approval.

Exercise and Expiration of Permits (BMC Section 23.404.060.C)

A. Apermitauthorizing aland use is exercised when both a valid City business license is issued
(if required) and the land use is established on the property.

B. A permit authorizing construction is exercised when both a valid City building permit (if
required) is issued and construction has lawfully begun.

C. The Zoning Officer may declare a permit lapsed if it is not exercised within one year of its
issuance, except if the applicant has applied for a building permit or has made a substantial
good faith effort to obtain a building permit and begin construction. The Zoning Officer may
declare a permit lapsed only after 14 days written notice to the applicant. A determination
that a permit has lapsed may be appealed to the ZAB in accordance with Chapter 23.410
(Appeals and Certification).

D. A permit declared lapsed shall be void and of no further force and effect. To establish the
use or structure authorized by the lapsed permit, an applicant must apply for and receive
City approval of a new permit.

Permit Remains Effective for Vacant Property (BMC Section 23.404.060.D)

File: C:\Users\tbenado\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\ER8BSN5C\2022-1 1-03_CC_ATT1A_DRAFR§Q_ZOF%e23
(002).docx



Page 8 of 93

2018 BLAKE STREET - USE PERMIT #ZP2021-0095 FINDINGS & CONDITIONS
November 3, 2022 Page 5 of 17

10.

11.

Once a Permit for a use is exercised and the use is established, the permit authorizing the use
remains effective even if the property becomes vacant. The same use as allowed by the original
permit may be re-established without obtaining a new permit, except as set forth in Standard
Condition #5 above.

Permit Modifications (BMC Section 23.404.070)

No change in the use or structure for which this Permit is issued is permitted unless the Permit
is modified by the Board of Zoning Adjustments. The Zoning Officer may approve changes to
plans approved by the Board, consistent with the Board’s policy adopted on May 24, 1978, which
reduce the size of the project.

Permit Revocation (BMC Section 23.404.080)

The City may revoke or modify a discretionary permit for completed projects due to: 1) violations
of permit requirements; 2) Changes to the approved project; and/or 3) Vacancy for one year or
more. However, no lawful residential use can lapse, regardless of the length of time of the
vacancy. Proceedings to revoke or modify a permit may be initiated by the Zoning Officer, Zoning
Adjustments Board (ZAB), or City Council referral.

Pay Transparency Acknowledgement (BMC Section 13.104.030)
Prior to the issuance of a building permit for any Project subject to this Chapter:

A. A Responsible Representative of the Permittee shall certify under penalty of perjury that:
(1) the Permittee has reviewed Chapter 13.104 of the Berkeley Municipal Code; and (2)
the Permittee will be responsible for demonstrating compliance with this Chapter.

B. The Permittee shall provide to the City a Contractor Pay Transparency Acknowledgment
on a form approved by the City for this purpose. A Responsible Representative of the
Permittee shall certify under penalty of perjury that the Contractor and all Qualifying
Subcontractors performing work on the Project will comply with Chapter 13.104 of the
Berkeley Municipal Code and with Labor Code sections 226(a) and 2810.5 for each
employee who works on the Project.

Pay Transparency Attestations Following Project Completion (BMC Section 13.104.040)
Within 10 days of the approved final inspection of any Project subject to this Chapter, each
Permittee shall provide to the City for each Contractor and Qualifying Subcontractor a Pay
Transparency Attestation on a form approved by the City. On each Pay Transparency
Attestation, a Responsible Representative of the Contractor or Qualifying Subcontractor shall
attest under penalty of perjury that the Contractor or Qualifying Subcontractor complied with
Chapter 13.104 of the Berkeley Municipal Code and Labor Code sections 226(a) and 2810.5 for
each employee who performed work on the Project. The City will maintain Pay Transparency
Attestation forms for period of at least three years after their date of receipt by the City.

Posting of Ordinance (BMC Section 13.104.050)

Each day work is performed on the Project, each Permittee shall post, and keep posted in a
conspicuous location where it may be easily read by employees during the hours of the workday,
a notice that: (A) contains the text of Chapter 13.104 of the Berkeley Municipal Code; (B)
explains that workers can report violations of Labor Code sections 226 and 2810.5 to the Labor
Commissioner of the State of California; and (C) provides current contact information, including
office address, telephone number, and email address of the Labor Commissioner of the State of
California.

File: C:\Users\tbenado\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\ER8BSN5C\2022-1 1-03_CC_ATT1A_DRAFR§Q_ZOF%e24
(002).docx



Page 9 of 93

2018 BLAKE STREET - USE PERMIT #ZP2021-0095 FINDINGS & CONDITIONS
November 3, 2022 Page 6 of 17

12. Conditions of Approval (BMC Section 13.104.060)
The requirements of Sections 13.104.030 through 13.104.050 shall be included as conditions of
approval of any Use Permit or Zoning Certificate for any Project that is subject to this Chapter.
Failure to comply with the requirements of any provision of this Chapter shall be grounds for
issuance of an administrative citation under Chapter 1.28 and/or the revocation or modification
of any Use Permit issued for the Project under Chapter 23B.60.

13. Indemnification Agreement

The applicant shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify the City of Berkeley and its officers,
agents, and employees against any and all liability, damages, claims, demands, judgments or
other losses (including without limitation, attorney’s fees, expert witness and consultant fees and
other litigation expenses), referendum or initiative relating to, resulting from or caused by, or
alleged to have resulted from, or caused by, any action or approval associated with the
project. The indemnity includes without limitation, any legal or administrative challenge,
referendum or initiative filed or prosecuted to overturn, set aside, stay or otherwise rescind any
or all approvals granted in connection with the Project, any environmental determination made
for the project and granting any permit issued in accordance with the project. This indemnity
includes, without limitation, payment of all direct and indirect costs associated with any action
specified herein. Direct and indirect costs shall include, without limitation, any attorney’s fees,
expert witness and consultant fees, court costs, and other litigation fees. City shall have the
right to select counsel to represent the City at Applicant’s expense in the defense of any action
specified in this condition of approval. City shall take reasonable steps to promptly notify the
Applicant of any claim, demand, or legal actions that may create a claim for indemnification
under these conditions of approval.

V. ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS IMPOSED BY THE ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD

Pursuant to BMC 23.404.050(H), the City Council attaches the following additional conditions to this
Permit:

Prior to Submittal of Any Building Permit:

14. Project Liaison. The applicant shall include in all building permit plans and post onsite the name
and telephone number of an individual empowered to manage construction-related complaints
generated from the project. The individual’'s name, telephone number, and responsibility for the
project shall be posted at the project site for the duration of the project in a location easily visible
to the public. The individual shall record all complaints received and actions taken in response,
and submit written reports of such complaints and actions to the project planner on a weekly
basis. Please designate the name of this individual below:

[J Project Liaison

Name Phone #

15. Final Design Review. The Project was referred by ZAB to the Design Review Committee (DRC)
for design review. The applicant shall obtain approval of a Final Design Review (FDR) application
by the DRC. The applicant shall present plans at FDR that incorporate visual enhancements to
the east and west facades of the building, as discussed by the ZAB at the May 26" hearing.

File: C:\Users\tbenado\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\ER8BSN5C\2022-1 1-03_CC_ATT1A_DRAFR§Q_ZOF%e25
(002).docx



Page 10 of 93

2018 BLAKE STREET - USE PERMIT #ZP2021-0095 FINDINGS & CONDITIONS
November 3, 2022 Page 7 of 17
16. Address Assignment. The applicant shall file an “Address Assignment Request Application” with

the Permit Service Center (1947 Center Street) for any address change or new address
associated with this Use Permit. The new address(es) shall be assigned in accordance with
BMC 16.28.030, and entered into the City’s database after the building permit is issued but prior
to final inspection.

Prior to Issuance of Any Building & Safety Permit (Demolition or Construction)

17.

18.

Construction _and Demolition Diversion. Applicant shall submit a Construction Waste
Management Plan that meets the requirements of BMC Chapter 19.37 including 100% diversion
of asphalt, concrete, excavated soil and land-clearing debris and a minimum of 65% diversion
of other nonhazardous construction and demolition waste.

Toxics. The applicant shall contact the Toxics Management Division (TMD) at 1947 Center
Street or (510) 981-7470 to determine which of the following documents are required and timing
for their submittal:

A. Environmental Site Assessments:

1) Phase | & Phase Il Environmental Site Assessments (latest ASTM 1527-13). A recent
Phase | ESA (less than 2 years old*) shall be submitted to TMD for developments for:

e All new commercial, industrial and mixed use developments and all large
improvement projects.

e All new residential buildings with 5 or more dwelling units located in the
Environmental Management Area (or EMA).

e EMA is available online
at: http://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/IT/Level 3 - General/ema.pdf

2) Phase Il ESA is required to evaluate Recognized Environmental Conditions (REC)
identified in the Phase | or other RECs identified by TMD staff. The TMD may require a
third party toxicologist to review human or ecological health risks that may be identified.
The applicant may apply to the appropriate state, regional or county cleanup agency to
evaluate the risks.

3) If the Phase | is over 2 years old, it will require a new site reconnaissance and interviews.
If the facility was subject to regulation under Title 15 of the Berkeley Municipal Code since
the last Phase | was conducted, a new records review must be performed.

B. Soil and Groundwater Management Plan:

1) A Soil and Groundwater Management Plan (SGMP) shall be submitted to TMD for all non-
residential projects, and residential or mixed-use projects with five or more dwelling units,
that: (1) are in the Environmental Management Area (EMA) and (2) propose any
excavations deeper than 5 feet below grade. The SGMP shall be site specific and identify
procedures for soil and groundwater management including identification of pollutants
and disposal methods. The SGMP will identify permits required and comply with all
applicable local, state and regional requirements.

2) The SGMP shall require notification to TMD of any hazardous materials found in soils and
groundwater during development. The SGMP will provide guidance on managing odors
during excavation. The SGMP will provide the name and phone number of the individual
responsible for implementing the SGMP and post the name and phone number for the
person responding to community questions and complaints.

3) TMD may impose additional conditions as deemed necessary. All requirements of the
approved SGMP shall be deemed conditions of approval of this Use Permit.

File: C:\Users\tbenado\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\ER8BSN5C\2022-1 1-03_CC_ATT1A_DRAFRéQ_20F%e26
(002).docx


https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Online_Service_Center/Planning/Waste%20Management%20Plan.pdf
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Online_Service_Center/Planning/Waste%20Management%20Plan.pdf
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/IT/Level_3_-_General/ema.pdf

Page 11 of 93

2018 BLAKE STREET - USE PERMIT #ZP2021-0095 FINDINGS & CONDITIONS
November 3, 2022 Page 8 of 17

C. Building Materials Survey:

1) Prior to approving any permit for partial or complete demolition and renovation activities
involving the removal of 20 square or lineal feet of interior or exterior walls, a building
materials survey shall be conducted by a qualified professional. The survey shall include,
but not be limited to, identification of any lead-based paint, asbestos, polychlorinated
biphenyl (PBC) containing equipment, hydraulic fluids in elevators or lifts, refrigeration
systems, treated wood and mercury containing devices (including fluorescent light bulbs
and mercury switches). The Survey shall include plans on hazardous waste or hazardous
materials removal, reuse or disposal procedures to be implemented that fully comply state
hazardous waste generator requirements (22 California Code of Regulations 66260 et
seq). The Survey becomes a condition of any building or demolition permit for the project.
Documentation evidencing disposal of hazardous waste in compliance with the survey
shall be submitted to TMD within 30 days of the completion of the demolition. If asbestos
is identified, Bay Area Air Quality Management District Regulation 11-2-401.3 a
notification must be made and the J number must be made available to the City of
Berkeley Permit Service Center.

D. Hazardous Materials Business Plan:

1) A Hazardous Materials Business Plan (HMBP) in compliance with BMC Section
15.12.040 shall be submitted electronically at http://cers.calepa.ca.gov/ within 30 days if
on-site hazardous materials exceed BMC 15.20.040. HMBP requirement can be found at
http://ci.berkeley.ca.us/hmr/

Prior to Issuance of Any Building (Construction) Permit

19.

20.

21.

22,

23.

Percent for Public Art: Consistent with BMC Section 23.316, the applicant shall either pay the
required in-lieu fee or provide the equivalent amount in a financial guarantee to be released after
installation of the On-Site Publicly Accessible Art.

HVAC Noise Reduction. Prior to the issuance of building permits, the project applicant shall
submit plans that show the location, type, and design of proposed heating, ventilation, and
cooling (HVAC) equipment. In addition, the applicant shall provide product specification sheets
or a report from a qualified acoustical consultant showing that operation of the proposed HVAC
equipment will meet the City’s exterior noise requirements in BMC Section 13.40.050. The City’s
Planning and Development Department shall review the submitted plans, including the selected
HVAC equipment, to verify compliance with exterior noise standards.

Interior Noise Levels. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall submit a report
to the Building and Safety Division and the Zoning Officer by a qualified acoustic engineer
certifying that the interior residential portions of the project will achieve interior noise levels of no
more than 45 Ldn (Average Day-Night Levels). If the adopted Building Code imposes a more
restrictive standard for interior noise levels, the report shall certify compliance with this standard.

Solar Photovoltaic (Solar PV). A solar PV system, on the solar zone specified in Section 110.10
of the 2019 Energy Code, shall be installed (subject to the exceptions in Section 110.10) as
specified by the Berkeley Energy Code (BMC Chapter 19.36). Location of the solar PV system
shall be noted on the construction plans.

Water Efficient Landscaping. Landscaping, totaling 500 square feet of more of new landscaping
or 2,500 square feet or more of renovated irrigated area, shall comply with the State’s Model

File: C:\Users\tbenado\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\ER8BSN5C\2022-1 1-03_CC_ATT1A_DRAFR§Q_ZOF%e27
(002).docx


http://cers.calepa.ca.gov/
http://ci.berkeley.ca.us/hmr/

Page 12 of 93

2018 BLAKE STREET - USE PERMIT #ZP2021-0095 FINDINGS & CONDITIONS
November 3, 2022 Page 9 of 17

24,

25.

26.

Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance (MWELO). MWELO-compliant landscape documentation
including a planting, grading, and irrigation plan shall be included in site plans. Water budget
calculations are also required for landscapes of 2,500 square feet or more and shall be included
in site plans. The reference evapotranspiration rate (ETo) for Berkeley is 41.8.

Prohibition of Natural Gas Infrastructure in New Buildings. The project shall comply with the City
of Berkeley Prohibition of Natural Gas Infrastructure in New Buildings (BMC Chapter 12.80).

Recycling and Organics Collection. Applicant shall provide recycling and organics collection
areas for occupants, clearly marked on site plans, which comply with the Alameda County
Mandatory Recycling Ordinance (ACWMA Ordinance 2012-01).

Public Works ADA. Plans submitted for building permit shall include replacement of sidewalk,
curb, gutter, and other streetscape improvements, as necessary to comply with current City of
Berkeley standards for accessibility.

During Construction:

27.

28.

29.

Construction Hours. Construction activity shall be limited to between the hours of 8:00 AM and
6:00 PM on Monday through Friday, and between 9:00 AM and Noon on Saturday. No
construction-related activity shall occur on Sunday or any Federal Holiday.

Public Works - Implement BAAQMD-Recommended Measures during Construction. For all
proposed projects, BAAQMD recommends implementing all the Basic Construction Mitigation
Measures, listed below to meet the best management practices threshold for fugitive dust:

A. All exposed surfaces (e.g., parking areas, staging areas, soil piles, graded areas, and

unpaved access roads) shall be watered two times per day.

All haul trucks transporting soil, sand, or other loose material off-site shall be covered.

All visible mud or dirt track-out onto adjacent public roads shall be removed using wet power

vacuum street sweepers at least once per day. The use of dry power sweeping is prohibited.

All vehicle speeds on unpaved roads shall be limited to 15 mph.

All roadways, driveways, and sidewalks to be paved shall be completed as soon as possible.

Building pads shall be laid as soon as possible after grading unless seeding or soil binders

are used.

Idling times shall be minimized either by shutting equipment off when not in use or reducing

the maximum idling time to 5 minutes (as required by the California airborne toxics control

measure Title 13, Section 2485 of California Code of Regulations [CCR]). Clear signage
shall be provided for construction workers at all access points.

G. All construction equipment shall be maintained and properly tuned in accordance with
manufacturer's specifications. All equipment shall be checked by a certified visible
emissions evaluator.

H. Post a publicly visible sign with the telephone number and person to contact at the lead
agency regarding dust complaints. This person shall respond and take corrective action
within 48 hours. The Air District's phone number shall also be visible to ensure compliance
with applicable regulations.

mo Ow

AL

Construction and Demolition Diversion. Divert debris according to your plan and collect required
documentation. Get construction debris receipts from sorting facilities in order to verify diversion
requirements. Upload recycling and disposal receipts if using Green Halo and submit online for

File: C:\Users\tbenado\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\ER8BSN5C\2022-1 1-03_CC_ATT1A_DRAFR§Q_ZOF%e28
(002).docx


https://greenhalosystems.com/

Page 13 of 93

2018 BLAKE STREET - USE PERMIT #ZP2021-0095 FINDINGS & CONDITIONS
November 3, 2022 Page 10 of 17

30.

31.

32.

City review and approval prior to final inspection. Alternatively, complete the second page of the
original Construction Waste Management Plan and present it, along with your construction
debris receipts, to the Building Inspector by the final inspection to demonstrate diversion rate
compliance. The Zoning Officer may request summary reports at more frequent intervals, as
necessary to ensure compliance with this requirement.

Low-Carbon Concrete. The project shall maintain compliance with the Berkeley Green Code
(BMC Chapter 19.37) including use of concrete mix design with a cement reduction of at least
25%. Documentation on concrete mix design shall be available at all times at the construction
site for review by City Staff.

Transportation Construction Plan. The applicant and all persons associated with the project are

hereby notified that a Transportation Construction Plan (TCP) is required for all phases of

construction, particularly for the following activities:

e Alterations, closures, or blockages to sidewalks, pedestrian paths or vehicle travel lanes
(including bicycle lanes);

e Storage of building materials, dumpsters, debris anywhere in the public ROW;

e Provision of exclusive contractor parking on-street; or

e Significant truck activity.

The applicant shall secure the City Traffic Engineer's approval of a TCP. Please contact the
Office of Transportation at 981-7010, or 1947 Center Street, and ask to speak to a traffic
engineer. In addition to other requirements of the Traffic Engineer, this plan shall include the
locations of material and equipment storage, trailers, worker parking, a schedule of site
operations that may block traffic, and provisions for traffic control. The TCP shall be consistent
with any other requirements of the construction phase.

Contact the Permit Service Center (PSC) at 1947 Center Street or 981-7500 for details on
obtaining Construction/No Parking Permits (and associated signs and accompanying dashboard
permits). Please note that the Zoning Officer and/or Traffic Engineer may limit off-site parking
of construction-related vehicles if necessary to protect the health, safety or convenience of the
surrounding neighborhood. A current copy of this Plan shall be available at all times at the
construction site for review by City Staff.

Avoid Disturbance of Nesting Birds. Initial site disturbance activities, including vegetation and
concrete removal, shall be prohibited during the general avian nesting season (February 1 to
August 30), if feasible. If nesting season avoidance is not feasible, the applicant shall retain a
qualified biologist to conduct a preconstruction nesting bird survey to determine the
presence/absence, location, and activity status of any active nests on or adjacent to the project
site. The extent of the survey buffer area surrounding the site shall be established by the qualified
biologist to ensure that direct and indirect effects to nesting birds are avoided. To avoid the
destruction of active nests and to protect the reproductive success of birds protected by the
MBTA and CFGC, nesting bird surveys shall be performed not more than 14 days prior to
scheduled vegetation and concrete removal. In the event that active nests are discovered, a
suitable buffer (typically a minimum buffer of 50 feet for passerines and a minimum buffer of 250
feet for raptors) shall be established around such active nests and no construction shall be
allowed inside the buffer areas until a qualified biologist has determined that the nest is no longer

File: C:\Users\tbenado\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\ER8BSN5C\2022-1 1-03_CC_ATT1A_DRAFRéQ_20F%e29
(002).docx


https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Online_Service_Center/Planning/Waste%20Management%20Plan.pdf

Page 14 of 93

2018 BLAKE STREET - USE PERMIT #ZP2021-0095 FINDINGS & CONDITIONS
November 3, 2022 Page 11 of 17

33.

34.

35.

active (e.g., the nestlings have fledged and are no longer reliant on the nest). No ground-
disturbing activities shall occur within this buffer until the qualified biologist has confirmed that
breeding/nesting is completed and the young have fledged the nest. Nesting bird surveys are
not required for construction activities occurring between August 31 and January 31.

Archaeological Resources (Ongoing throughout demolition, grading, and/or construction).
Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15064.5(f), “provisions for historical or unique
archaeological resources accidentally discovered during construction” should be instituted.
Therefore:

A. In the event that any prehistoric or historic subsurface cultural resources are discovered
during ground disturbing activities, all work within 50 feet of the resources shall be halted
and the project applicant and/or lead agency shall consult with a qualified archaeologist,
historian or paleontologist to assess the significance of the find.

B. If any find is determined to be significant, representatives of the project proponent and/or
lead agency and the qualified professional would meet to determine the appropriate
avoidance measures or other appropriate measure, with the ultimate determination to be
made by the City of Berkeley. All significant cultural materials recovered shall be subject to
scientific analysis, professional museum curation, and/or a report prepared by the qualified
professional according to current professional standards.

C. In considering any suggested measure proposed by the qualified professional, the project
applicant shall determine whether avoidance is necessary or feasible in light of factors such
as the uniqueness of the find, project design, costs, and other considerations.

D. If avoidance is unnecessary or infeasible, other appropriate measures (e.g., data recovery)
shall be instituted. Work may proceed on other parts of the project site while mitigation
measures for cultural resources is carried out.

E. If significant materials are recovered, the qualified professional shall prepare a report on the
findings for submittal to the Northwest Information Center.

Human Remains (Ongoing throughout demolition, grading, and/or construction). In the event
that human skeletal remains are uncovered at the project site during ground-disturbing activities,
all work shall immediately halt and the Alameda County Coroner shall be contacted to evaluate
the remains, and following the procedures and protocols pursuant to Section 15064.5 (e)(1) of
the CEQA Guidelines. If the County Coroner determines that the remains are Native American,
the City shall contact the California Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC), pursuant to
subdivision (c) of Section 7050.5 of the Health and Safety Code, and all excavation and site
preparation activities shall cease within a 50-foot radius of the find until appropriate
arrangements are made. If the agencies determine that avoidance is not feasible, then an
alternative plan shall be prepared with specific steps and timeframe required to resume
construction activities. Monitoring, data recovery, determination of significance and avoidance
measures (if applicable) shall be completed expeditiously.

Paleontological Resources (Ongoing throughout demolition, grading, and/or construction). In the
event of an unanticipated discovery of a paleontological resource during construction,
excavations within 50 feet of the find shall be temporarily halted or diverted until the discovery
is examined by a qualified paleontologist (per Society of Vertebrate Paleontology standards
[SVP 1995,1996]). The qualified paleontologist shall document the discovery as needed,
evaluate the potential resource, and assess the significance of the find. The paleontologist shall
notify the appropriate agencies to determine procedures that would be followed before

File: C:\Users\tbenado\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\ER8BSN5C\2022-1 1-03_CC_ATT1A_DRAFR§Q_ZOF%e30
(002).docx



Page 15 of 93

2018 BLAKE STREET - USE PERMIT #ZP2021-0095 FINDINGS & CONDITIONS
November 3, 2022 Page 12 of 17

construction is allowed to resume at the location of the find. If the City determines that avoidance
is not feasible, the paleontologist shall prepare an excavation plan for mitigating the effect of the
project on the qualities that make the resource important, and such plan shall be implemented.
The plan shall be submitted to the City for review and approval.

36. Halt Work/Unanticipated Discovery of Tribal Cultural Resources. In the event that cultural
resources of Native American origin are identified during construction, all work within 50 feet of
the discovery shall be redirected. The project applicant and project construction contractor shall
notify the City Planning Department within 24 hours. The City will again contact any tribes who
have requested consultation under AB 52, as well as contact a qualified archaeologist, to
evaluate the resources and situation and provide recommendations. If it is determined that the
resource is a tribal cultural resource and thus significant under CEQA, a mitigation plan shall be
prepared and implemented in accordance with State guidelines and in consultation with Native
American groups. If the resource cannot be avoided, additional measures to avoid or reduce
impacts to the resource and to address tribal concerns may be required.

37. Stormwater Requirements. The applicant shall demonstrate compliance with the requirements
of the City’s National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit as described in
BMC Section 17.20. The following conditions apply:

A. The project plans shall identify and show site-specific Best Management Practices (BMPs)
appropriate to activities conducted on-site to limit to the maximum extent practicable the
discharge of pollutants to the City's storm drainage system, regardless of season or weather
conditions.

B. Trash enclosures and/or recycling area(s) shall be covered; no other area shall drain onto
this area. Drains in any wash or process area shall not discharge to the storm drain system,;
these drains should connect to the sanitary sewer. Applicant shall contact the City of
Berkeley and EBMUD for specific connection and discharge requirements. Discharges to
the sanitary sewer are subject to the review, approval and conditions of the City of Berkeley
and EBMUD.

C. Landscaping shall be designed with efficient irrigation to reduce runoff, promote surface
infiltration and minimize the use of fertilizers and pesticides that contribute to stormwater
pollution. Where feasible, landscaping should be designed and operated to treat runoff.
When and where possible, xeriscape and drought tolerant plants shall be incorporated into
new development plans.

D. Design, location and maintenance requirements and schedules for any stormwater quality
treatment structural controls shall be submitted to the Department of Public Works for review
with respect to reasonable adequacy of the controls. The review does not relieve the
property owner of the responsibility for complying with BMC Chapter 17.20 and future
revisions to the City's overall stormwater quality ordinances. This review shall be shall be
conducted prior to the issuance of a Building Permit.

E. All paved outdoor storage areas must be designed to reduce/limit the potential for runoff to
contact pollutants.

F. All on-site storm drain inlets/catch basins must be cleaned at least once a year immediately
prior to the rainy season. The property owner shall be responsible for all costs associated
with proper operation and maintenance of all storm drainage facilities (pipelines, inlets, catch
basins, outlets, etc.) associated with the project, unless the City accepts such facilities by
Council action. Additional cleaning may be required by City of Berkeley Public Works
Engineering Dept.

File: C:\Users\tbenado\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\ER8BSN5C\2022-1 1-03_CC_ATT1A_DRAFR§Q_20F%e3 1
(002).docx



Page 16 of 93

2018 BLAKE STREET - USE PERMIT #ZP2021-0095 FINDINGS & CONDITIONS
November 3, 2022 Page 13 of 17

38.

39.

40.

41.

G. All private or public projects that create and/or replace 10,000 square feet or more of
impervious surface must comply with Provision C.3 of the Alameda County NPDES permit
and must incorporate stormwater controls to enhance water quality. Permit submittals shall
include a Stormwater Requirement Checklist and detailed information showing how the
proposed project will meet Provision C.3 stormwater requirements, including a) Site design
measures to reduce impervious surfaces, promote infiltration, and reduce water quality
impacts; b) Source Control Measures to keep pollutants out of stormwater runoff; c)
Stormwater treatment measures that are hydraulically sized to remove pollutants from
stormwater; d) an O & M (Operations and Maintenance) agreement for all stormwater
treatment devices and installations; and e) Engineering calculations for all stormwater
devices (both mechanical and biological).

H. All on-site storm drain inlets must be labeled “No Dumping — Drains to Bay” or equivalent
using methods approved by the City.

I.  Most washing and/or steam cleaning must be done at an appropriately equipped facility that
drains to the sanitary sewer. Any outdoor washing or pressure washing must be managed
in such a way that there is no discharge or soaps or other pollutants to the storm drain.
Sanitary connections are subject to the review, approval and conditions of the sanitary
district with jurisdiction for receiving the discharge.

J. Sidewalks and parking lots shall be swept regularly to prevent the accumulation of litter and
debris. If pressure washed, debris must be trapped and collected to prevent entry to the
storm drain system. If any cleaning agent or degreaser is used, wash water shall not
discharge to the storm drains; wash waters should be collected and discharged to the
sanitary sewer. Discharges to the sanitary sewer are subject to the review, approval and
conditions of the sanitary district with jurisdiction for receiving the discharge.

K. The applicant is responsible for ensuring that all contractors and sub-contractors are aware
of and implement all stormwater quality control measures. Failure to comply with the
approved construction BMPs shall result in the issuance of correction notices, citations, or
a project stop work order.

Public Works. All piles of debris, soil, sand, or other loose materials shall be covered at night

and during rainy weather with plastic at least one-eighth millimeter thick and secured to the
ground.

Public Works. The applicant shall ensure that all excavation takes into account surface and
subsurface waters and underground streams so as not to adversely affect adjacent properties
and rights-of-way.

Public Works. The project sponsor shall maintain sandbags or other devices around the site
perimeter during the rainy season to prevent on-site soils from being washed off-site and into
the storm drain system. The project sponsor shall comply with all City ordinances regarding
construction and grading.

Public Works. Prior to any excavation, grading, clearing, or other activities involving soil
disturbance during the rainy season the applicant shall obtain approval of an erosion prevention
plan by the Building and Safety Division and the Public Works Department. The applicant shall
be responsible for following these and any other measures required by the Building and Safety
Division and the Public Works Department.

File: C:\Users\tbenado\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\ER8BSN5C\2022-1 1-03_CC_ATT1A_DRAFR§Q_20F%e32
(002).docx



Page 17 of 93

2018 BLAKE STREET - USE PERMIT #ZP2021-0095 FINDINGS & CONDITIONS
November 3, 2022 Page 14 of 17
42. Public Works. The removal or obstruction of any fire hydrant shall require the submission of a

43.

plan to the City’s Public Works Department for the relocation of the fire hydrant during
construction.

Public Works. If underground utilities leading to adjacent properties are uncovered and/or
broken, the contractor involved shall immediately notify the Public Works Department and the
Building & Safety Division, and carry out any necessary corrective action to their satisfaction.

Prior to Final Inspection or Issuance of Occupancy Permit:

44,

45.

46.

Compliance with Conditions. The project shall conform to the plans and statements in the Use

Permit. The developer is responsible for providing sufficient evidence to demonstrate
compliance with the requirements throughout the implementation of this Use Permit.

Compliance with Approved Plan. The project shall conform to the plans and statements in the

Use Permit. All landscape, site and architectural improvements shall be completed per the
attached approved drawings dated March 23, 2022, except as modified by conditions of
approval.

Transportation Demand Management. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, the

property owner shall facilitate a site inspection by Planning Department staff to confirm that the
physical improvements required in Section 23.334.030(C) and 23.322.090 (bike parking) have
been installed. The property owner shall also provide documentation that the programmatic

measures required in 23.334.030(A) and 23.334.030(B) will be implemented.

A.

Consistent with Section 23.334.030(A), all parking spaces provided for residents be leased or
sold separate from the rental or purchase of dwelling units for the life of the dwelling units, such
that potential renters or buyers shall have the option of renting or buying a dwelling unit at a
price lower than would be the case if there were a single price for both the dwelling unit and
the parking space(s).

. Consistent with Section 23.334.030(B), at least one of the following transit benefits shall be

offered, at no cost to the resident, for a period of ten years after the issuance of a Certificate
of Occupancy. A notice describing these transportation benefits shall be posted in a location
or locations visible to all employees.

1. One monthly pass for unlimited local bus transit service for every bedroom in each
dwelling unit, up to a maximum of two benefits per dwelling unit.

2. Subject to the review and approval of the Zoning Officer in consultation with the
Transportation Division Manager, a functionally equivalent transit benefit in an
amount at least equal to the price of a non-discounted unlimited monthly local bus
pass.

Consistent with Section 23.334.030(C), publicly-available, real-time transportation information
in a common area, such as a lobby or elevator bay, on televisions, computer monitors or other
displays readily visible to residents and/or visitors, shall be provided. Transportation
information shall include, but is not limited to, transit arrivals and departures for nearby transit
routes.

Property owners may be required to pay administrative fees associated with compliance with
this Condition.

File: C:\Users\tbenado\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\ER8BSN5C\2022-1 1-03_CC_ATT1A_DRAFR§Q_ZOF%e33

(002).docx



Page 18 of 93

2018 BLAKE STREET - USE PERMIT #ZP2021-0095 FINDINGS & CONDITIONS
November 3, 2022 Page 15 of 17

BELOW MARKET RATE UNITS

47.

48.

49.

50.

51.

Number of Below Market Rate Units. The project shall provide below market rate rental dwelling
units (“BMR Units”) to comply with the State Density Bonus Law (Government Code Section
65915). The BMR Units shall be designated in the Regulatory Agreement (described below) and
may also qualify as inclusionary units for the purpose of satisfying the City’s Affordable Housing
Mitigation Fee (AHMF), BMC Section 22.20.065, and fee resolution applicable to this project.
The applicant shall provide a schedule, consistent with a schedule approved by the City Manager
or her designee, outlining the timeframe for payment of the AHMF, if any, and they shall pay this
fee and/or provide in-lieu affordable housing unit(s) pursuant to the BMC and administrative
regulations.

BMR Units shall be reasonably dispersed throughout the project; be of the same size and
contain, on average, the same number of bedrooms as the non-BMR units in the project; and be
comparable with the design or use of non-BMR units in terms of appearance, materials and finish
quality. The designation of BMR Units shall conform to the addresses assigned to the building
by the City.

Reqgulatory Agreement. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall enter into a
Regulatory Agreement that ensures compliance with Government Code Section 65915 and this
Use Permit. The Regulatory Agreement may include any terms and affordability standards
determined by the City to be necessary to ensure such compliance. The applicant shall submit
the Regulatory Agreement to the Housing and Community Services Department (HHCS) via
email to affordablehousing@cityofberkeley.info for review. HHCS approval and payment of fees
are required prior to occupancy.

In addition, the following provisions shall apply:

A. Maximum rent shall be adjusted for the family size appropriate for the unit pursuant to
California Health & Safety Code Section 50052.5 (h).

B. Rent shall include a reasonable allowance for utilities, as published and updated by the
Berkeley Housing Authority, including garbage collection, sewer, water, electricity, gas, and
other heating, cooking and refrigeration fuels. Such allowance shall take into account the cost
of an adequate level of service. Utilities do not include telephone service. Rent also includes
any separately charged fees or service charges assessed by the lessor which are required of
all tenants, other than security deposits.

C.BMR units will be provided for the life of the project pursuant to BMC Section 22.20.065.

Determination of Area Median Income (AMI)

e The “AMI” (Area Median Income) shall be based on the income standards for the Oakland
Primary Metropolitan Statistical Area reported by the United States Department of Housing
and Urban Development (HUD). In the event HUD discontinues establishing such income
standards, AMI shall be based on income standards determined by the California State
Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD). If such income standards are
no longer in existence, the City will designate another appropriate source or method for
determining the median household income.

e The applicable AMI for the purpose of determining the allowable rent for each unit (but not
for the purpose of determining eligibility for occupancy of an inclusionary unit) shall be
determined in accordance with the following table:

File: C:\Users\tbenado\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\ER8BSN5C\2022-1 1-03_CC_ATT1A_DRAFR§Q_ZOF%e34
(002).docx


mailto:affordablehousing@cityofberkeley.info

Page 19 of 93

2018 BLAKE STREET - USE PERMIT #ZP2021-0095 FINDINGS & CONDITIONS
November 3, 2022 Page 16 of 17

Unit Size AMI Standard

Studio unit AMI for a one-person household

One-bedroom unit AMI for a two-person household

Two-bedroom unit AMI for a three-person household

Three-bedroom unit AMI for a four-person household

Four-bedroom unit AMI for a five-person household

Five-bedroom unit AMI for a six-person household

Six-bedroom unit AMI for a seven-person household

Seven-bedroom unit AMI for an eight-person household

52. Nothing in these conditions shall be interpreted to prohibit, or to require modification of the Use
Permit or Regulatory Agreement to allow, the provision of additional BMR units, or additional
affordability, than are required in the foregoing provisions.

At All Times:

53. Transportation Demand Management Compliance. The property owner shall submit to the
Planning Department periodic TDM Compliance Reports in accordance with Administrative
Regulations, subject to the review and oversight of the Zoning Officer. Property owners may be
required to pay administrative fees associated with compliance with this Condition, pursuant to
BMC Section 23.334.040(B).

54. Exterior Lighting. All exterior lighting shall be energy efficient where feasible; and shielded and
directed downward and away from property lines to prevent excessive glare beyond the subject
property.

55. Rooftop Projections. No additional rooftop or elevator equipment shall be added to exceed the
approved maximum roof height without submission of an application for a Use Permit
Modification, subject to Board review and approval.

56. Drainage Patterns. The applicant shall establish and maintain drainage patterns that do not
adversely affect adjacent properties and rights-of-way. Drainage plans shall be submitted for
approval of the Building & Safety Division and Public Works Department, if required.

57. Electrical Meter. Only one electrical meter fixture may be installed per dwelling unit.

58. Residential Permit Parking. No Residential Permit Parking (RPP) permits shall be issued to
project residents, nor shall commercial placards be issued to non-residential occupants and/or
users of the site. The Finance Department, Customer Service Center, shall add these addresses
to the list of addresses ineligible for RPP permits. The property owner shall notify all tenants of
rental units, and/or buyers of condominium units, of this restriction in leases and/or contracts,
and shall provide sample leases and/or contracts including such notification to the project
planner prior to issuance of an occupancy permit or final inspection.

59. Tenant Notification. The developer shall provide tenant notification, via a lease rider or deed
covenant, that each dwelling unit is located in a mixed-use area that includes commercial, food
service and entertainment uses, and that each occupant shall not seek to impede their lawful
operation.

60. All exterior lighting shall be shielded and directed downward and away from property lines to

File: C:\Users\tbenado\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\ER8BSN5C\2022-1 1-03_CC_ATT1A_DRAFRéQ_20F%e35
(002).docx



Page 20 of 93

2018 BLAKE STREET - USE PERMIT #ZP2021-0095 FINDINGS & CONDITIONS
November 3, 2022 Page 17 of 17

prevent excessive glare beyond the subject property.

File: C:\Users\tbenado\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\ER8BSN5C\2022-1 1-03_CC_ATT1A_DRAFRéQ_20F%e36
(002).docx



Page 21 of 93

"/ [ CITYoF

»~

Office of the City Manager
PUBLIC HEARING

November 15, 2022
(Continued from November 3, 2022)

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Jordan Klein, Director, Planning & Development Department

Subject: ZAB Appeal: 2018 Blake Street, Use Permit #2P2021-0095
RECOMMENDATION

Conduct a public hearing and, upon conclusion, adopt a Resolution affirming the Zoning
Adjustments Board (ZAB) decision to approve Use Permit #ZP2021-0095 to construct a

six-story, multi-family residential building with 12 units (including two Low-Income units),
and dismiss the appeal.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
None.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
On June 3, 2021, Huan Fang submitted an application for Use Permit #2ZP2021-0095 to
construct a six-story, multi-family residential building with 12 units.

On March 16, 2022, the application was deemed complete.

On May 26, 2022, the ZAB conducted a public hearing for the use permit application.
After hearing public comments and holding discussion, the ZAB approved the use
permit by a vote of 8-0-0-1 (Yes: Duffy, Kahn, O’ Keefe, Olson, Sanderson, Thompson,
Vincent, Tregub; No: None; Abstain: None; Absent: Kim).

On June 7, 2022, staff issued the ZAB Notice of Decision.

On June 21, 2022, the City Clerk received an appeal filing from John De Domenico,
resident at 20207~ Blake Street.

On September 22, 2022, staff posted the public hearing notice at the site and three
nearby locations, and mailed notices to property owners and occupants within 300 feet
of the project site, and to all registered neighborhood groups that cover this area. The
Council must conduct a public hearing to resolve the appeal.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 e TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981&%%9_ Page 37
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager

Page 22 of 93

ZAB Appeal: 2018 Blake Street PUBLIC HEARING
Use Permit #2P2021-0095 November 15, 2022
BACKGROUND

The immediate environs of the project site consist of one-story commercial/industrial
buildings on parcels to the north; one- and two-story, single- and multi-family dwellings
on parcels to the west, immediately east (R-4 Multi-Family Residential District) and to
the south (R-2A, Restricted Multi-Family Residential District); and one- and two-story
commercial buildings (C-AC, Adeline Corridor Commercial District) on parcels beyond
the R-4 district, further east of the site. The parcel across the street and to the northeast
at 2029 Blake Street (C-AC) is occupied by a recently-constructed, five-story, 82-unit,
mixed-use building. Use permits for other large projects were approved within the past
two years on the same block: a six-story, 113-unit, community care facility for seniors at
2000 Dwight Way, and a seven-story, 155-unit, multi-family building at 2015 Blake.

The proposed project would involve the removal of remnants of a single-family dwelling
and accessory structure that were damaged by fire in 2019, and ordered to be
demolished after being deemed unsafe and an immediate threat to health and safety by
the City Building Official. In its place, the project proposes to construct a residential
building of six stories and 64 feet, 6 inches in height and 12 dwelling units.

The project is eligible for a density bonus under Government Code Section 65915, by
including two Low-income units (25 percent of the base project), and qualifies for a 50
percent density bonus, or four bonus units, resulting in a 12-unit density bonus project,
with waivers of the side and rear yard setbacks minimums and the lot coverage
maximum. The project is also compliant with all applicable, objective general plan and
zoning standards, and was approved without reductions to project’s density, pursuant to
the State Housing Accountability Act (HAA), Government Code Section 65589.5(j)! (see
further discussion of the HAA in Appeal Issue 1, below).

For additional project background, please see Attachment 3, the ZAB staff report for this
project.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

The issues raised in the appellant’s letter and staff's responses follow. For the sake of
brevity, the appeal issues are not re-stated in their entirety. Please refer to the attached
appeal letter (Attachment 2) for the full text.

Issue 1: The appellants assert that the six-story building would be taller than
existing buildings on nearby properties on its block (which are generally one- and
two- story development), and would be incompatible with the land uses,

" The Housing Accountability Act (HAA), Government Code Section 65589.5(j), requires that when a
proposed housing development complies with the applicable, objective general plan and zoning
standards, but a local agency proposes to deny the project or approve it only if the density is reduced, the
agency must base its decision on written findings supported by substantial evidence that the development
would have a specific adverse impact on public health or safety unless disapproved, or approved at a
lower density; and there is no feasible method to satisfactorily mitigate or avoid the specific adverse
impact, other than the disapproval, or approval at a lower density.

Page 2 Rev - Page 38



Page 23 of 93

ZAB Appeal: 2018 Blake Street PUBLIC HEARING
Use Permit #2P2021-0095 November 15, 2022

architectural design and scale of neighboring properties on the south side of
Blake street. Shadow impacts from the project on dwellings to west, east and
northeast are not reasonable, and can be avoided. These impacts from the project
would be detrimental and injurious to property and improvements of adjacent
properties, the surrounding area, neighborhood and to the general welfare of the
city. Neighbors were told at the ZAB hearing that the decision was already made
and was irreversible.

Response 1: As a residential building with 12 dwelling units, 200 square feet of usable
open space per unit, and six stories/65 feet of height, that shares a city block with the
C-AC Adeline Corridor Commercial District, the proposed project is consistent with the
purposes of the R-4 Multi-Family Residential District and adjacent land uses. The R-4
District provides for relatively high-density residential development; housing for persons
who desire both convenience of location and a reasonable amount of usable open
space; and protection of adjacent properties from unreasonable obstruction of light and
air. The R-2A Restricted Multiple-Family Residential District, which borders the south
side of the project site, encourages similar types of development — medium-density
residential areas characterized by small multiple-family and garden-type apartment
structures with a maximum of open space. Projects have been approved by the City in
the past two years in the R-4 District, on sites across Blake Street (on the north side)
that are much larger in scope than the 2018 Blake project — a six-story, 113-unit,
community care facility for seniors at 2000 Dwight Way, and a seven-story, 155-unit,
multi-family building at 2015 Blake. As discussed in the staff report, the ZAB was able to
make findings for non-detriment, noting that the project would be consistent with the
trend of increasing density in the neighborhood.

Though the Berkeley Municipal Code (BMC) requires findings of general non-detriment?
for approval of discretionary permits, and each zoning district has district purposes to
guide development, non-detriment findings are not objective standards and cannot
provide a basis for denial or reduction in density for a housing project, due to
protections provided by the State Housing Accountability Act (HAA). Pursuant to
Government Code Section 65589.5(j) the City cannot deny or reduce the density of a
housing development that is compliant with objective standards, unless it can meet the
strict finding of specific adverse impact on public health or safety — a level of impact
which the State Department of Housing and Community Development considers to be
rare.3 Analyses of the compatibility of architectural design, building massing and scale,

2 The findings for approval of use permits, sometimes referred to as “general non-detriment findings” are
described in BMC Section 23.406.040(E)(1) Findings for Approval:

“To approve a Use Permit, the ZAB shall find that the proposed project or use:

(a) Will not be detrimental to the health, safety, peace, morals, comfort, or general welfare of persons
residing or visiting in the area or neighborhood of the proposed use; and

(b) Will not be detrimental or injurious to property and improvements of the adjacent properties, the
surrounding area or neighborhood, or to the general welfare of the City.”

3 Housing Accountability Act Technical Assistance Advisory (Government Code Section 65589.5), p. 20;
State Department of Housing and Community Development.

Page 3 Rev - Page 39



Page 24 of 93

ZAB Appeal: 2018 Blake Street PUBLIC HEARING
Use Permit #2P2021-0095 November 15, 2022

and shadow impact on the surrounding neighborhood are only provided in the staff
report for public interest and informational purposes. Additionally, the project is a
residential development in a residential district, and is not subject to design review. The
ZAB determined that the project is compliant with all applicable, objective general plan
and zoning standards and that the findings to deny or reduce the project could not be
made, and approved the project with direction to the applicant to refine and enhance the
building design at Final Design Review before the DRC.

In accordance with Section 65589.5(j)(3) of the HAA, compliance with State Density
Bonus waiver and concession provisions is consistent with the ZAB’s determination of
project compliance with objective standards.* Pursuant to Government Code Section
65915 State Density Bonus, in exchange for providing affordable units on site, a project
is entitled to density bonus units, as well as modifications to zoning standards that can
expand the building’s massing, in the form of waivers and concessions to accommodate
the full density bonus project on the site. Waivers of the side and rear setbacks, and lot
coverage, were requested for the project. As discussed in the ZAB staff report, the
requested waivers were granted because findings of specific adverse impact® to health
and safety could not be made. No waivers for height were requested, and no
concessions were requested. In the R-4 District where the project site is located, the
proposed building of six stories and 65 feet is allowed by right in the base project (the
objective standards-compliant project, before the density bonus is added) and no
additional height permit or waiver is required.®

In summary, the ZAB was able to make the findings for non-detriment to approve the
project. Additionally, State laws for housing developments that were established to
facilitate the production of new housing, such as the HAA and State Density Bonus,
impose limitations to local discretion over project entitlements, and allow projects to
have larger building envelopes than would be permissible through the base district
zoning standards, in the interest of constructing more housing in the immediate future.

Issue 2: The appellants assert that several neighbors within 300 feet of the project
site attest that they did not receive notice of the proposed development or notice

4 Section 65589.5(j)(3) in the HAA provides that a request for a density bonus “shall not constitute a valid
basis on which to find a proposed housing development project is inconsistent, not in compliance, or not
in conformity, with an applicable plan, program, policy, ordinance, standard, requirement, or other similar
provision specified in this subdivision.”

5 A “specific, adverse impact” means “a significant, quantifiable, direct, and unavoidable impact, based on
objective, identified written public health or safety standards, policies, or conditions as they existed on the
date the application was deemed complete”. This definition is also used for applying HAA findings.

6 The City has determined that the “protections afforded by the HAA and the definition of a base project
for density bonus calculations apply to a housing development project up to and including the maximum
development allowed with use permits and/or administrative use permits.” (Housing Accountability Act &
Density Bonus — Objective Standards Memorandum, August 2, 2021; Land Use Planning Division)
Therefore, the use permits to extend the district height limit to 65’ and six stories and to allow rooftop
elements to exceed height limits are included in the Base Project for the purpose of determining
compliance with objective standards.

Page 4 Rev - Page 40



Page 25 of 93

ZAB Appeal: 2018 Blake Street PUBLIC HEARING
Use Permit #2P2021-0095 November 15, 2022

of the ZAB public hearing. Neighbors were told they would receive a direct link to
the hearing and did not. The email address for the ZAB hearing notice was
incorrect. Neighbors feel they were denied meaningful opportunity to comment
and denied the right to be involved in the planning and development process.

Response 2: City staff followed public noticing protocols that were in place at the time of
each noticing period. The permit application was submitted to the Land Use Planning
Division on June 3, 2021.7 On June 10, 2021, the City mailed a Notice of Received
Application to property owners and occupants within 300 feet of the project site and to
interested neighborhood organizations, and posted a notice at the project site. The
notices contained weblinks to the application materials, a permit status webpage, and
the email addresses for the applicant and project planner. A mailing list was generated
for the postcard mailings that day.

On May 11, 2022, in accordance with BMC Section 23.404.040 Public Notice, and in
preparation for the ZAB hearing scheduled for May 26, 2022, the City mailed public
hearing notices to property owners and occupants within 300 feet of the project site and
to interested neighborhood organizations, and posted notices within the neighborhood
in three locations — on the project site and at two other locations near the project site.
The notices contained weblinks to the ZAB agenda, the hearing materials, application
materials, and email addresses for the project planner and the ZAB secretary. The
online ZAB agenda contained the direct live link to attend the public hearing.

A new mailing list was generated for the ZAB hearing notices, per Land Use Planning
Division policy that a new list should be generated if a previous list is six months or
older, and notices were sent out that day. Any differences between the two mailing lists
are expected because address assignments can change over the course of time due to
new addresses or the deletion of existing addresses. Occasionally also, the City’s
Parcel Notifier software can temporarily malfunction and cause some inaccuracies in
the generation of mailing lists. A software malfunction could have been the cause of
some neighbors not receiving a notice.

The ZAB public hearing notice listed email addresses for the project planner and for the
ZAB Secretary using a new email suffix, _@berkeleyca.gov, because the new City
website was launched at the end of April 2022, and with the launch, new email suffixes
for all City email addresses were implemented. Preliminary testing of the new suffix
indicated that it was working properly for City staff. For instance, the new email address
for the project planner was working properly.

On May 26, 2022, the day of the hearing, staff was notified through an email from one of
the project site neighbors that the zab@berkeleyca.gov address was returning an email

7 The Pre-Application Yellow Poster and Neighborhood Outreach components of the land use application
submittal requirements were temporarily suspended at the time of the application submittal due to City
emergency health orders. The suspension was lifted on July 1, 2021.

Page 5 Rev - Page 41


mailto:_@berkeleyca.gov
mailto:zab@berkeleyca.gov

Page 26 of 93

ZAB Appeal: 2018 Blake Street PUBLIC HEARING
Use Permit #2P2021-0095 November 15, 2022

delivery failure notice. It was too late to resend or repost physical hearing notices, but
staff immediately corrected the email address in the online ZAB agenda to list the old
address — zab@cityofberkeley.info, which was still working.

Staff followed all noticing procedures and immediately corrected errors when alerted to
them, and despite some technical trouble that may have occurred with the mailing list
generation and ZAB email address, members of the public were able to reach staff and
the applicants with comments, and were able to attend the public hearing to express
their concerns. Staff received a total of eight comment letters from the public during the
course of project review, and several neighbors spoke at the project’s hearing.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

The project approved by the ZAB is in compliance with all applicable State and local
environmental requirements, would be located in a transit-rich area, and would be built
and operated according to current codes for energy conservation, waste reduction, low
toxicity, and other factors.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED

Pursuant to BMC Section 23.410.040(G), the Council may (1) continue the public
hearing, (2) reverse, affirm, or modify the ZAB’s decision, or (3) remand the matter to
the ZAB.

Action Deadline:

Pursuant to BMC Section 23.410.040(l), if the disposition of the appeal has not been
determined within 30 days from the date the public hearing was closed by the Council
(not including Council recess), then the decision of the Board shall be deemed affirmed
and the appeal shall be deemed denied.

CONTACT PERSONS

Jordan Klein, Director, Planning & Development Department, (510) 981-7534
Steven Buckley, Land Use Planning Manager, (510) 981-7411

Sharon Gong, Project Planner, (510) 981-7429

Attachments:
1. Draft Resolution
e Exhibit A: Findings and Conditions
e Exhibit B: Project Plans, received March 23, 2022
Appeal Letter, dated received June 21, 2022
May 26, 2022 ZAB Hearing Staff Report
Index to Administrative Record
Administrative Record
Public Hearing Notice

Sk wnN

Page 6 Rev - Page 42


mailto:zab@cityofberkeley.info

Page 27 of 93

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

AFFIRMING THE ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD APPROVAL OF USE PERMIT
#7P2021-0095 TO CONSTRUCT A SIX-STORY, MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL
BUILDING WITH 12 UNITS (INCLUDING TWO LOW-INCOME UNITS), AND DISMISS
THE APPEAL.

WHEREAS, on June 3, 2021, Huan Fang (“applicant”), submitted an application for Use
Permit #ZP2021-0095 to construct a six-story, multi-family residential building with 12
units, including two Low-Income units (“project”); and

WHEREAS, on March 16, 2022, staff deemed this application complete and determined
that the project is categorically exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act
(“CEQA”) under Section 15332 of the CEQA Guidelines (“In-Fill Development Projects”);
and

WHEREAS, on May 11, 2022, staff mailed and posted a Notice of Public Hearing for the
project at the site and two nearby locations, and mailed notices to property owners and
occupants within 300 feet of the project site, and to all registered neighborhood groups
that cover this area; and

WHEREAS, on May 26, 2022, the Zoning Adjustments Board (ZAB) conducted a public
hearing for the Use Permit. After hearing public comments and holding discussion, the
ZAB approved the Use Permit by a vote of 8-0-0-1 (Yes: Duffy, Kahn, O’ Keefe, Olson,
Sanderson, Thompson, Vincent, Tregub; No: None; Abstain: None; Absent: Kim); and

WHEREAS, on June 7, 2022, staff issued the notice of the ZAB decision; and

WHEREAS, on June 21, 2022, the City Clerk received an appeal filing of the ZAB decision
from John De Domenico, resident at 2020 2 Blake Street; and

WHEREAS, on or before September 22, 2022, staff mailed and posted a Notice of Public
Hearing at the site and two nearby locations, and mailed notices to property owners and
occupants within 300 feet of the project site, and to all registered neighborhood groups
that cover this area; and

WHEREAS, on October 6, 2022, the Council held a public hearing to consider the ZAB’s
decision, and in the opinion of this Council, the facts stated in, or ascertainable from the
public record, including the staff report and comments made at the public hearing, warrant
approving the project.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Berkeley that
the City Council hereby adopts the findings made by the ZAB in Exhibit A to affirm the
decision of the ZAB to approve Use Permit #ZP2021-0095, adopts the conditions of
approval in Exhibit A, adopts the project plans in Exhibit B, and dismisses the appeal.

Rev - Page 43



Page 28 of 93

Exhibits
A: Findings and Conditions
B: Project Plans, received March 23, 2022

Page 2 Rev - Page 44



Page 29 of 93

ATTACHMENT 1, EXHIBIT A

FINDINGS AND CONDITIONS
OCTOBERG, 2022

2018 Blake Street

Use Permit #P2021-0095 to construct a six-story, multi-family residential building
with 12 units (including two Low-Income units).

PERMITS REQUIRED

Use Permit under Berkeley Municipal Code (BMC) Section 23.202.020(A) to construct a multifamily
residential building

Use Permit under BMC Section 23.202.110(E)(2) to construct a main building that exceeds 35 feet
in average height and three stories, up to 65 feet and six stories

Administrative Use Permit under BMC Section 23.304.050(A) to construct rooftop projections, such
as mechanical appurtenances or architectural elements which exceed the maximum height limit for
the district.

CONCESSIONS/ WAIVERS UNDER GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 65915-65918

No concessions

Waiver of BMC Section 23.202.110(E)(1) to reduce minimum side setback (above the 2™ floor) and
rear yard setback (above the 3 floor)
Waiver of BMC Section 23.202.110(E)(2) to exceed lot coverage

CEQA FINDINGS

1. The project is categorically exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA, Public Resources Code §21000, et seq. and California Code of Regulations,
§15000, et seq.) pursuant to §15332 (“In-Fill Development Projects”).

The project meets all of the requirements of this exemption, as follows:

A. The project is consistent with the applicable General Plan designation and policies, and
with the applicable zoning designation and regulations.

B. The project occurs within the Berkeley City limits on a project site of no more than five
acres, and is surrounded by urban uses.

C. The parcels within the project site have previously been developed and have no value as
habitat for endangered, rare or threatened species.

D. The project would not result in any significant effects relating to traffic, noise, air quality or
water quality. The Traffic Impact Analysis prepared for the project was reviewed by the
City Transportation Division which concurred with the findings of less than significant
impacts. City Standard Conditions would address potential impacts related to traffic,
noise, air quality, and water quality.

E. The site can be adequately served by all required utilities and public services.

2. Furthermore, none of the exceptions in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2 apply, as follows:

(a) the site is not located in an environmentally sensitive area, (b) there are no cumulative
impacts, (c) there are no significant effects, (d) the project is not located near a scenic highway,
(e) the project site is not located on a hazardous waste site pursuant to Government Code
Section 65962.5, and (f) the project would not affect any historical resource.

1947 Center Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 Tel: 510.981.7410 TDD: 510.981.7474 Fax: 510.981.7420 Rey - Page 45
E-mail: zab@cityofberkeley.info



Page 30 of 93

2018 BLAKE STREET - USE PERMIT #ZP2021-0095 FINDINGS & CONDITIONS
October 6, 2022 Page 2 of 17

DENSITY BONUS FINDINGS

1. Pursuant to Government Code Section 65915, the City Council finds that:

A. Under the City’s methodology for implementing density bonuses, the “base project”
consists of 8 units;

B. The project will provide two Low-Income qualifying units in the eight-unit “base project”, as
more fully set forth in Conditions 48 to 52;

C. The project is entitled to a density increase of 50 percent over the otherwise maximum
allowable residential density under the Zoning Ordinance and General Plan Land Use
Element, under the requirements of Government Code Section 65915(b) and (f). This
equates to a density bonus of four units above the Base Project, for a total of 12 units.

. In accordance with Government Code Section 65915(e) the City Council hereby grants the

following waivers:

A. Waiver of BMC Section 23.202.110(E)(1) to reduce minimum side setback (above the 2nd
floor) and rear yard setback (above the 3rd floor)

B. Waiver of BMC Section 23.202.110(E)(2) to exceed lot coverage

These waivers are required because State law requires the City to modify development
standards as necessary to accommodate these density bonus units, and because the City
Council hereby finds that the density bonus units can best be accommodated by granting these
waivers.

. In accordance with Government Code Section 65915(e), in order to allow construction of the

proposed project with the density permitted under State law, the City Council finds approval of
waivers is required 1) construct the proposed project at the density permitted under State law;
2) approval of requested waivers would not have a specific adverse impact upon public health
and safety, or the physical environment, or on any real property listed in the California Register
of Historical Resources; and 3) approval of the requested waivers would not be contrary to
State or Federal law.

lll. FINDINGS FOR APPROVAL

File:

4. The Housing Accountability Act, Government Code Section 65589.5(j) requires that when a

proposed housing development complies with applicable, objective general plan and zoning

standards, a local agency may not deny the project or approve it with reduced density unless

the agency makes written findings supported by substantial evidence that:

A. The development would have a specific adverse impact on public health or safety unless
disapproved or approved at a lower density; and

B. There is no feasible method to satisfactorily mitigate or avoid the specific adverse impact,
other than the disapproval or approval at a lower density.

Because the Base Project would comply with applicable, objective general plan and zoning
standards, §65589.5(j) does apply to this project. No significant, quantifiable, direct and
unavoidable impacts, based on objective, identified written public health or safety standards,
polices, or conditions, have been identified. The project includes construction of 12 dwelling
units.

Rev - Page 46



Page 31 of 93

2018 BLAKE STREET - USE PERMIT #ZP2021-0095 FINDINGS & CONDITIONS
October 6, 2022 Page 3 of 17

5. As required by Section 23.406.040(E)(1) of the BMC, the project, under the circumstances of
this particular case existing at the time at which the application is granted, would not be
detrimental to the health, safety, peace, morals, comfort, and general welfare of the persons
residing or working in the neighborhood of such proposed use or be detrimental or injurious to
property and improvements of the adjacent properties, the surrounding area or neighborhood,
or to the general welfare of the City because:

A. The project is consistent with all applicable R-4 District standards and qualifies for waivers
of the listed district standards granted pursuant to State Density Bonus, Government Code,
Section 65915;

B. The project follows a trend of increasing density in the neighborhood, including the recently-
constructed, five-story, mixed-use building at 2029 Blake Street, the approved use permit
for a six-story, community care facility for seniors at 2000 Dwight Way, and the approved
use permit for a seven-story, multi-family building at 2015 Blake. The proposed project will
provide new housing in a location with easy access to public transit and nearby commercial
services and stores, and will fulfill the purpose of the R-4 Multi-Family Residential District
by providing high-density residential development with sufficient usable open space at a
convenient location for desirable services.

C. Shadow impact on adjacent dwellings to the west, east, and northeast will result from the
new building, especially from the additional height above the district limits, which will cast
shadows in the affected directions further than if the project were limited to the base district
height standards. However, the shadow impacts on any one adjacent property will occur
during limited hours and times of the year. Furthermore, shadow impacts on adjacent
dwellings are difficult to avoid given the lot widths, height and building-to-building
separations permitted in the R-4 district. Therefore, the shadow impacts are found to be
reasonable and non-detrimental.

D. The project is subject to the City’s standard conditions of approval regarding construction
noise and air quality, waste diversion, toxics, and stormwater requirements, thereby
ensuring the project would not be detrimental to the health, safety, peace, morals, comfort
or general welfare of persons residing or working in the area or neighborhood of such
proposed use or be detrimental or injurious to property and improvements of the adjacent
properties, the surrounding area or neighborhood or to the general welfare of the City.

File:

Rev - Page 47



Page 32 of 93

2018 BLAKE STREET - USE PERMIT #ZP2021-0095 FINDINGS & CONDITIONS
October 6, 2022 Page 4 of 17

IV. STANDARD CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR ALL PROJECTS

The following conditions, as well as all other applicable provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, apply to
this Permit:

1.

File:

Conditions and Shall be Printed on Plans

The conditions of this Permit shall be printed on the second sheet of each plan set submitted for
a building permit pursuant to this Use Permit, under the title ‘Use Permit Conditions.” Additional
sheets may also be used if the second sheet is not of sufficient size to list all of the conditions.
The sheet(s) containing the conditions shall be of the same size as those sheets containing the
construction drawings; 8-1/2” by 11” sheets are not acceptable.

Compliance Required (BMC Section 23.102.050)

All land uses and structures in Berkeley must comply with the Zoning Ordinance and all
applicable City ordinances and regulations. Compliance with the Zoning Ordinance does not
relieve an applicant from requirements to comply with other federal, state, and City regulations
that also apply to the property.

Approval Limited to Proposed Project and Replacement of Existing Uses (BMC Sections

23.404.060.B.1 and 2)

A. This Permit authorizes only the proposed project described in the application. In no way
does an approval authorize other uses, structures or activities not included in the project
description.

B. When the City approves a new use that replaces an existing use, any prior approval of the
existing use becomes null and void when permits for the new use are exercised (e.g.,
building permit or business license issued). To reestablish the previously existing use, an
applicant must obtain all permits required by the Zoning Ordinance for the use.

Conformance to Approved Plans (BMC Section 23.404.060.B.4)
All work performed under an approved permit shall be in compliance with the approved plans
and any conditions of approval.

Exercise and Expiration of Permits (BMC Section 23.404.060.C)

A. Apermitauthorizing aland use is exercised when both a valid City business license is issued
(if required) and the land use is established on the property.

B. A permit authorizing construction is exercised when both a valid City building permit (if
required) is issued and construction has lawfully begun.

C. The Zoning Officer may declare a permit lapsed if it is not exercised within one year of its
issuance, except if the applicant has applied for a building permit or has made a substantial
good faith effort to obtain a building permit and begin construction. The Zoning Officer may
declare a permit lapsed only after 14 days written notice to the applicant. A determination
that a permit has lapsed may be appealed to the ZAB in accordance with Chapter 23.410
(Appeals and Certification).

D. A permit declared lapsed shall be void and of no further force and effect. To establish the
use or structure authorized by the lapsed permit, an applicant must apply for and receive
City approval of a new permit.

Permit Remains Effective for Vacant Property (BMC Section 23.404.060.D)

Rev - Page 48



Page 33 of 93

2018 BLAKE STREET - USE PERMIT #ZP2021-0095 FINDINGS & CONDITIONS
October 6, 2022 Page 5 of 17

10.

11.

File:

Once a Permit for a use is exercised and the use is established, the permit authorizing the use
remains effective even if the property becomes vacant. The same use as allowed by the original
permit may be re-established without obtaining a new permit, except as set forth in Standard
Condition #5 above.

Permit Modifications (BMC Section 23.404.070)

No change in the use or structure for which this Permit is issued is permitted unless the Permit
is modified by the Board of Zoning Adjustments. The Zoning Officer may approve changes to
plans approved by the Board, consistent with the Board’s policy adopted on May 24, 1978, which
reduce the size of the project.

Permit Revocation (BMC Section 23.404.080)

The City may revoke or modify a discretionary permit for completed projects due to: 1) violations
of permit requirements; 2) Changes to the approved project; and/or 3) Vacancy for one year or
more. However, no lawful residential use can lapse, regardless of the length of time of the
vacancy. Proceedings to revoke or modify a permit may be initiated by the Zoning Officer, Zoning
Adjustments Board (ZAB), or City Council referral.

Pay Transparency Acknowledgement (BMC Section 13.104.030)
Prior to the issuance of a building permit for any Project subject to this Chapter:

A. A Responsible Representative of the Permittee shall certify under penalty of perjury that:
(1) the Permittee has reviewed Chapter 13.104 of the Berkeley Municipal Code; and (2)
the Permittee will be responsible for demonstrating compliance with this Chapter.

B. The Permittee shall provide to the City a Contractor Pay Transparency Acknowledgment
on a form approved by the City for this purpose. A Responsible Representative of the
Permittee shall certify under penalty of perjury that the Contractor and all Qualifying
Subcontractors performing work on the Project will comply with Chapter 13.104 of the
Berkeley Municipal Code and with Labor Code sections 226(a) and 2810.5 for each
employee who works on the Project.

Pay Transparency Attestations Following Project Completion (BMC Section 13.104.040)
Within 10 days of the approved final inspection of any Project subject to this Chapter, each
Permittee shall provide to the City for each Contractor and Qualifying Subcontractor a Pay
Transparency Attestation on a form approved by the City. On each Pay Transparency
Attestation, a Responsible Representative of the Contractor or Qualifying Subcontractor shall
attest under penalty of perjury that the Contractor or Qualifying Subcontractor complied with
Chapter 13.104 of the Berkeley Municipal Code and Labor Code sections 226(a) and 2810.5 for
each employee who performed work on the Project. The City will maintain Pay Transparency
Attestation forms for period of at least three years after their date of receipt by the City.

Posting of Ordinance (BMC Section 13.104.050)

Each day work is performed on the Project, each Permittee shall post, and keep posted in a
conspicuous location where it may be easily read by employees during the hours of the workday,
a notice that: (A) contains the text of Chapter 13.104 of the Berkeley Municipal Code; (B)
explains that workers can report violations of Labor Code sections 226 and 2810.5 to the Labor
Commissioner of the State of California; and (C) provides current contact information, including
office address, telephone number, and email address of the Labor Commissioner of the State of
California.

Rev - Page 49



Page 34 of 93

2018 BLAKE STREET - USE PERMIT #2P2021-0095 FINDINGS & CONDITIONS
October 6, 2022 Page 6 of 17
12. Conditions of Approval (BMC Section 13.104.060)

13.

The requirements of Sections 13.104.030 through 13.104.050 shall be included as conditions of
approval of any Use Permit or Zoning Certificate for any Project that is subject to this Chapter.
Failure to comply with the requirements of any provision of this Chapter shall be grounds for
issuance of an administrative citation under Chapter 1.28 and/or the revocation or modification
of any Use Permit issued for the Project under Chapter 23B.60.

Indemnification Agreement

The applicant shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify the City of Berkeley and its officers,
agents, and employees against any and all liability, damages, claims, demands, judgments or
other losses (including without limitation, attorney’s fees, expert withness and consultant fees and
other litigation expenses), referendum or initiative relating to, resulting from or caused by, or
alleged to have resulted from, or caused by, any action or approval associated with the
project. The indemnity includes without limitation, any legal or administrative challenge,
referendum or initiative filed or prosecuted to overturn, set aside, stay or otherwise rescind any
or all approvals granted in connection with the Project, any environmental determination made
for the project and granting any permit issued in accordance with the project. This indemnity
includes, without limitation, payment of all direct and indirect costs associated with any action
specified herein. Direct and indirect costs shall include, without limitation, any attorney’s fees,
expert witness and consultant fees, court costs, and other litigation fees. City shall have the
right to select counsel to represent the City at Applicant’s expense in the defense of any action
specified in this condition of approval. City shall take reasonable steps to promptly notify the
Applicant of any claim, demand, or legal actions that may create a claim for indemnification
under these conditions of approval.

V. ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS IMPOSED BY THE ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD

Pursuant to BMC 23.404.050(H), the City Council attaches the following additional conditions to this
Permit:

Prior to Submittal of Any Building Permit:

14.

15.

16.

File:

Project Liaison. The applicant shall include in all building permit plans and post onsite the name
and telephone number of an individual empowered to manage construction-related complaints
generated from the project. The individual’s name, telephone number, and responsibility for the
project shall be posted at the project site for the duration of the project in a location easily visible
to the public. The individual shall record all complaints received and actions taken in response,
and submit written reports of such complaints and actions to the project planner on a weekly
basis. Please designate the name of this individual below:

[J Project Liaison

Name Phone #

Final Design Review. The Project was referred by ZAB to the Design Review Committee (DRC)
for design review. The applicant shall obtain approval of a Final Design Review (FDR) application
by the DRC. The applicant shall present plans at FDR that incorporate visual enhancements to
the east and west facades of the building, as discussed by the ZAB at the May 26" hearing.

Address Assignment. The applicant shall file an “Address Assignment Request Application” with
the Permit Service Center (1947 Center Street) for any address change or new address

Rev - Page 50




Page 35 of 93

2018 BLAKE STREET - USE PERMIT #ZP2021-0095 FINDINGS & CONDITIONS
October 6, 2022 Page 7 of 17

associated with this Use Permit. The new address(es) shall be assigned in accordance with
BMC 16.28.030, and entered into the City’s database after the building permit is issued but prior
to final inspection.

Prior to Issuance of Any Building & Safety Permit (Demolition or Construction)

17. Construction and Demolition Diversion. Applicant shall submit a Construction Waste
Management Plan that meets the requirements of BMC Chapter 19.37 including 100% diversion
of asphalt, concrete, excavated soil and land-clearing debris and a minimum of 65% diversion
of other nonhazardous construction and demolition waste.

18. Toxics. The applicant shall contact the Toxics Management Division (TMD) at 1947 Center
Street or (510) 981-7470 to determine which of the following documents are required and timing
for their submittal:

A. Environmental Site Assessments:

1) Phase | & Phase Il Environmental Site Assessments (latest ASTM 1527-13). A recent
Phase | ESA (less than 2 years old*) shall be submitted to TMD for developments for:

e All new commercial, industrial and mixed use developments and all large
improvement projects.

e All new residential buildings with 5 or more dwelling units located in the
Environmental Management Area (or EMA).

e EMA is available online
at: http://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/IT/Level 3 - General/ema.pdf

2) Phase Il ESA is required to evaluate Recognized Environmental Conditions (REC)
identified in the Phase | or other RECs identified by TMD staff. The TMD may require a
third party toxicologist to review human or ecological health risks that may be identified.
The applicant may apply to the appropriate state, regional or county cleanup agency to
evaluate the risks.

3) If the Phase | is over 2 years old, it will require a new site reconnaissance and interviews.
If the facility was subject to regulation under Title 15 of the Berkeley Municipal Code since
the last Phase | was conducted, a new records review must be performed.

B. Soil and Groundwater Management Plan:

1) A Soil and Groundwater Management Plan (SGMP) shall be submitted to TMD for all non-
residential projects, and residential or mixed-use projects with five or more dwelling units,
that: (1) are in the Environmental Management Area (EMA) and (2) propose any
excavations deeper than 5 feet below grade. The SGMP shall be site specific and identify
procedures for soil and groundwater management including identification of pollutants
and disposal methods. The SGMP will identify permits required and comply with all
applicable local, state and regional requirements.

2) The SGMP shall require notification to TMD of any hazardous materials found in soils and
groundwater during development. The SGMP will provide guidance on managing odors
during excavation. The SGMP will provide the name and phone number of the individual
responsible for implementing the SGMP and post the name and phone number for the
person responding to community questions and complaints.

3) TMD may impose additional conditions as deemed necessary. All requirements of the
approved SGMP shall be deemed conditions of approval of this Use Permit.

C. Building Materials Survey:

1) Prior to approving any permit for partial or complete demolition and renovation activities

involving the removal of 20 square or lineal feet of interior or exterior walls, a building

_ Rev - Page 51
File:


https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Online_Service_Center/Planning/Waste%20Management%20Plan.pdf
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Online_Service_Center/Planning/Waste%20Management%20Plan.pdf
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/IT/Level_3_-_General/ema.pdf

Page 36 of 93

2018 BLAKE STREET - USE PERMIT #ZP2021-0095 FINDINGS & CONDITIONS
October 6, 2022 Page 8 of 17

materials survey shall be conducted by a qualified professional. The survey shall include,
but not be limited to, identification of any lead-based paint, asbestos, polychlorinated
biphenyl (PBC) containing equipment, hydraulic fluids in elevators or lifts, refrigeration
systems, treated wood and mercury containing devices (including fluorescent light bulbs
and mercury switches). The Survey shall include plans on hazardous waste or hazardous
materials removal, reuse or disposal procedures to be implemented that fully comply state
hazardous waste generator requirements (22 California Code of Regulations 66260 et
seq). The Survey becomes a condition of any building or demolition permit for the project.
Documentation evidencing disposal of hazardous waste in compliance with the survey
shall be submitted to TMD within 30 days of the completion of the demolition. If asbestos
is identified, Bay Area Air Quality Management District Regulation 11-2-401.3 a
notification must be made and the J number must be made available to the City of
Berkeley Permit Service Center.

D. Hazardous Materials Business Plan:

1) A Hazardous Materials Business Plan (HMBP) in compliance with BMC Section
15.12.040 shall be submitted electronically at http://cers.calepa.ca.gov/ within 30 days if
on-site hazardous materials exceed BMC 15.20.040. HMBP requirement can be found at
http://ci.berkeley.ca.us/hmr/

Prior to Issuance of Any Building (Construction) Permit

19.

20.

21,

22,

23.

File:

Percent for Public Art: Consistent with BMC Section 23.316, the applicant shall either pay the
required in-lieu fee or provide the equivalent amount in a financial guarantee to be released after
installation of the On-Site Publicly Accessible Art.

Affordable Housing Mitigation Fee: Consistent with BMC Section 22.20.065, and fee resolution
applicable to this project, the applicant shall provide a schedule, consistent with a schedule
approved by the City Manager or her designee, outlining the timeframe for payment of the AHMF,
and they shall pay this fee.

HVAC Noise Reduction. Prior to the issuance of building permits, the project applicant shall
submit plans that show the location, type, and design of proposed heating, ventilation, and
cooling (HVAC) equipment. In addition, the applicant shall provide product specification sheets
or a report from a qualified acoustical consultant showing that operation of the proposed HVAC
equipment will meet the City’s exterior noise requirements in BMC Section 13.40.050. The City’s
Planning and Development Department shall review the submitted plans, including the selected
HVAC equipment, to verify compliance with exterior noise standards.

Interior Noise Levels. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall submit a report
to the Building and Safety Division and the Zoning Officer by a qualified acoustic engineer
certifying that the interior residential portions of the project will achieve interior noise levels of no
more than 45 Ldn (Average Day-Night Levels). If the adopted Building Code imposes a more
restrictive standard for interior noise levels, the report shall certify compliance with this standard.

Solar Photovoltaic (Solar PV). A solar PV system, on the solar zone specified in Section 110.10
of the 2019 Energy Code, shall be installed (subject to the exceptions in Section 110.10) as
specified by the Berkeley Energy Code (BMC Chapter 19.36). Location of the solar PV system
shall be noted on the construction plans.

Rev - Page 52


http://cers.calepa.ca.gov/
http://ci.berkeley.ca.us/hmr/

Page 37 of 93

2018 BLAKE STREET - USE PERMIT #ZP2021-0095 FINDINGS & CONDITIONS
October 6, 2022 Page 9 of 17
24. Water Efficient Landscaping. Landscaping, totaling 500 square feet of more of new landscaping

25.

26.

27.

or 2,500 square feet or more of renovated irrigated area, shall comply with the State’s Model
Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance (MWELQO). MWELO-compliant landscape documentation
including a planting, grading, and irrigation plan shall be included in site plans. Water budget
calculations are also required for landscapes of 2,500 square feet or more and shall be included
in site plans. The reference evapotranspiration rate (ETo) for Berkeley is 41.8.

Prohibition of Natural Gas Infrastructure in New Buildings. The project shall comply with the City
of Berkeley Prohibition of Natural Gas Infrastructure in New Buildings (BMC Chapter 12.80).

Recycling and Organics Collection. Applicant shall provide recycling and organics collection
areas for occupants, clearly marked on site plans, which comply with the Alameda County
Mandatory Recycling Ordinance (ACWMA Ordinance 2012-01).

Public Works ADA. Plans submitted for building permit shall include replacement of sidewalk,
curb, gutter, and other streetscape improvements, as necessary to comply with current City of
Berkeley standards for accessibility.

During Construction:

28.

29.

File:

Construction Hours. Construction activity shall be limited to between the hours of 8:00 AM and
6:00 PM on Monday through Friday, and between 9:00 AM and Noon on Saturday. No
construction-related activity shall occur on Sunday or any Federal Holiday.

Public Works - Implement BAAQMD-Recommended Measures during Construction. For all
proposed projects, BAAQMD recommends implementing all the Basic Construction Mitigation
Measures, listed below to meet the best management practices threshold for fugitive dust:

A. All exposed surfaces (e.g., parking areas, staging areas, soil piles, graded areas, and

unpaved access roads) shall be watered two times per day.

All haul trucks transporting soil, sand, or other loose material off-site shall be covered.

All visible mud or dirt track-out onto adjacent public roads shall be removed using wet power

vacuum street sweepers at least once per day. The use of dry power sweeping is prohibited.

All vehicle speeds on unpaved roads shall be limited to 15 mph.

All roadways, driveways, and sidewalks to be paved shall be completed as soon as possible.

Building pads shall be laid as soon as possible after grading unless seeding or soil binders

are used.

Idling times shall be minimized either by shutting equipment off when not in use or reducing

the maximum idling time to 5 minutes (as required by the California airborne toxics control

measure Title 13, Section 2485 of California Code of Regulations [CCR]). Clear signage
shall be provided for construction workers at all access points.

G. All construction equipment shall be maintained and properly tuned in accordance with
manufacturer's specifications. All equipment shall be checked by a certified visible
emissions evaluator.

H. Post a publicly visible sign with the telephone number and person to contact at the lead
agency regarding dust complaints. This person shall respond and take corrective action
within 48 hours. The Air District's phone number shall also be visible to ensure compliance
with applicable regulations.

mo O

L

Rev - Page 53



Page 38 of 93

2018 BLAKE STREET - USE PERMIT #ZP2021-0095 FINDINGS & CONDITIONS
October 6, 2022 Page 10 of 17
30. Construction and Demolition Diversion. Divert debris according to your plan and collect required

31.

32.

33.

File:

documentation. Get construction debris receipts from sorting facilities in order to verify diversion
requirements. Upload recycling and disposal receipts if using Green Halo and submit online for
City review and approval prior to final inspection. Alternatively, complete the second page of the
original Construction Waste Management Plan and present it, along with your construction
debris receipts, to the Building Inspector by the final inspection to demonstrate diversion rate
compliance. The Zoning Officer may request summary reports at more frequent intervals, as
necessary to ensure compliance with this requirement.

Low-Carbon Concrete. The project shall maintain compliance with the Berkeley Green Code
(BMC Chapter 19.37) including use of concrete mix design with a cement reduction of at least
25%. Documentation on concrete mix design shall be available at all times at the construction
site for review by City Staff.

Transportation Construction Plan. The applicant and all persons associated with the project are

hereby notified that a Transportation Construction Plan (TCP) is required for all phases of

construction, particularly for the following activities:

e Alterations, closures, or blockages to sidewalks, pedestrian paths or vehicle travel lanes
(including bicycle lanes);

e Storage of building materials, dumpsters, debris anywhere in the public ROW;

e Provision of exclusive contractor parking on-street; or

¢ Significant truck activity.

The applicant shall secure the City Traffic Engineer's approval of a TCP. Please contact the
Office of Transportation at 981-7010, or 1947 Center Street, and ask to speak to a traffic
engineer. In addition to other requirements of the Traffic Engineer, this plan shall include the
locations of material and equipment storage, trailers, worker parking, a schedule of site
operations that may block traffic, and provisions for traffic control. The TCP shall be consistent
with any other requirements of the construction phase.

Contact the Permit Service Center (PSC) at 1947 Center Street or 981-7500 for details on
obtaining Construction/No Parking Permits (and associated signs and accompanying dashboard
permits). Please note that the Zoning Officer and/or Traffic Engineer may limit off-site parking
of construction-related vehicles if necessary to protect the health, safety or convenience of the
surrounding neighborhood. A current copy of this Plan shall be available at all times at the
construction site for review by City Staff.

Avoid Disturbance of Nesting Birds. Initial site disturbance activities, including vegetation and
concrete removal, shall be prohibited during the general avian nesting season (February 1 to
August 30), if feasible. If nesting season avoidance is not feasible, the applicant shall retain a
qualified biologist to conduct a preconstruction nesting bird survey to determine the
presence/absence, location, and activity status of any active nests on or adjacent to the project
site. The extent of the survey buffer area surrounding the site shall be established by the qualified
biologist to ensure that direct and indirect effects to nesting birds are avoided. To avoid the
destruction of active nests and to protect the reproductive success of birds protected by the
MBTA and CFGC, nesting bird surveys shall be performed not more than 14 days prior to
scheduled vegetation and concrete removal. In the event that active nests are discovered, a
suitable buffer (typically a minimum buffer of 50 feet for passerines and a minimum buffer of 250

Rev - Page 54



https://greenhalosystems.com/
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Online_Service_Center/Planning/Waste%20Management%20Plan.pdf

Page 39 of 93

2018 BLAKE STREET - USE PERMIT #ZP2021-0095 FINDINGS & CONDITIONS
October 6, 2022 Page 11 of 17

34.

35.

36.

File:

feet for raptors) shall be established around such active nests and no construction shall be
allowed inside the buffer areas until a qualified biologist has determined that the nest is no longer
active (e.g., the nestlings have fledged and are no longer reliant on the nest). No ground-
disturbing activities shall occur within this buffer until the qualified biologist has confirmed that
breeding/nesting is completed and the young have fledged the nest. Nesting bird surveys are
not required for construction activities occurring between August 31 and January 31.

Archaeological Resources (Ongoing throughout demolition, grading, and/or construction).
Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15064.5(f), “provisions for historical or unique
archaeological resources accidentally discovered during construction” should be instituted.
Therefore:

A. In the event that any prehistoric or historic subsurface cultural resources are discovered
during ground disturbing activities, all work within 50 feet of the resources shall be halted
and the project applicant and/or lead agency shall consult with a qualified archaeologist,
historian or paleontologist to assess the significance of the find.

B. If any find is determined to be significant, representatives of the project proponent and/or
lead agency and the qualified professional would meet to determine the appropriate
avoidance measures or other appropriate measure, with the ultimate determination to be
made by the City of Berkeley. All significant cultural materials recovered shall be subject to
scientific analysis, professional museum curation, and/or a report prepared by the qualified
professional according to current professional standards.

C. In considering any suggested measure proposed by the qualified professional, the project
applicant shall determine whether avoidance is necessary or feasible in light of factors such
as the uniqueness of the find, project design, costs, and other considerations.

D. If avoidance is unnecessary or infeasible, other appropriate measures (e.g., data recovery)
shall be instituted. Work may proceed on other parts of the project site while mitigation
measures for cultural resources is carried out.

E. If significant materials are recovered, the qualified professional shall prepare a report on the
findings for submittal to the Northwest Information Center.

Human Remains (Ongoing throughout demolition, grading, and/or construction). In the event
that human skeletal remains are uncovered at the project site during ground-disturbing activities,
all work shall immediately halt and the Alameda County Coroner shall be contacted to evaluate
the remains, and following the procedures and protocols pursuant to Section 15064.5 (e)(1) of
the CEQA Guidelines. If the County Coroner determines that the remains are Native American,
the City shall contact the California Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC), pursuant to
subdivision (c) of Section 7050.5 of the Health and Safety Code, and all excavation and site
preparation activities shall cease within a 50-foot radius of the find until appropriate
arrangements are made. If the agencies determine that avoidance is not feasible, then an
alternative plan shall be prepared with specific steps and timeframe required to resume
construction activities. Monitoring, data recovery, determination of significance and avoidance
measures (if applicable) shall be completed expeditiously.

Paleontological Resources (Ongoing throughout demolition, grading, and/or construction). In the

event of an unanticipated discovery of a paleontological resource during construction,
excavations within 50 feet of the find shall be temporarily halted or diverted until the discovery
is examined by a qualified paleontologist (per Society of Vertebrate Paleontology standards
[SVP 1995,1996]). The qualified paleontologist shall document the discovery as needed,

Rev - Page 55



Page 40 of 93

2018 BLAKE STREET - USE PERMIT #ZP2021-0095 FINDINGS & CONDITIONS
October 6, 2022 Page 12 of 17

37.

38.

File:

evaluate the potential resource, and assess the significance of the find. The paleontologist shall
notify the appropriate agencies to determine procedures that would be followed before
construction is allowed to resume at the location of the find. If the City determines that avoidance
is not feasible, the paleontologist shall prepare an excavation plan for mitigating the effect of the
project on the qualities that make the resource important, and such plan shall be implemented.
The plan shall be submitted to the City for review and approval.

Halt Work/Unanticipated Discovery of Tribal Cultural Resources. In the event that cultural
resources of Native American origin are identified during construction, all work within 50 feet of
the discovery shall be redirected. The project applicant and project construction contractor shall
notify the City Planning Department within 24 hours. The City will again contact any tribes who
have requested consultation under AB 52, as well as contact a qualified archaeologist, to
evaluate the resources and situation and provide recommendations. If it is determined that the
resource is a tribal cultural resource and thus significant under CEQA, a mitigation plan shall be
prepared and implemented in accordance with State guidelines and in consultation with Native
American groups. If the resource cannot be avoided, additional measures to avoid or reduce
impacts to the resource and to address tribal concerns may be required.

Stormwater Requirements. The applicant shall demonstrate compliance with the requirements
of the City’s National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit as described in
BMC Section 17.20. The following conditions apply:

A. The project plans shall identify and show site-specific Best Management Practices (BMPs)
appropriate to activities conducted on-site to limit to the maximum extent practicable the
discharge of pollutants to the City's storm drainage system, regardless of season or weather
conditions.

B. Trash enclosures and/or recycling area(s) shall be covered; no other area shall drain onto
this area. Drains in any wash or process area shall not discharge to the storm drain system,;
these drains should connect to the sanitary sewer. Applicant shall contact the City of
Berkeley and EBMUD for specific connection and discharge requirements. Discharges to
the sanitary sewer are subject to the review, approval and conditions of the City of Berkeley
and EBMUD.

C. Landscaping shall be designed with efficient irrigation to reduce runoff, promote surface
infiltration and minimize the use of fertilizers and pesticides that contribute to stormwater
pollution. Where feasible, landscaping should be designed and operated to treat runoff.
When and where possible, xeriscape and drought tolerant plants shall be incorporated into
new development plans.

D. Design, location and maintenance requirements and schedules for any stormwater quality
treatment structural controls shall be submitted to the Department of Public Works for review
with respect to reasonable adequacy of the controls. The review does not relieve the
property owner of the responsibility for complying with BMC Chapter 17.20 and future
revisions to the City's overall stormwater quality ordinances. This review shall be shall be
conducted prior to the issuance of a Building Permit.

E. All paved outdoor storage areas must be designed to reduce/limit the potential for runoff to
contact pollutants.

F. All on-site storm drain inlets/catch basins must be cleaned at least once a year immediately
prior to the rainy season. The property owner shall be responsible for all costs associated
with proper operation and maintenance of all storm drainage facilities (pipelines, inlets, catch
basins, outlets, etc.) associated with the project, unless the City accepts such facilities by

Rev - Page 56



Page 41 of 93

2018 BLAKE STREET - USE PERMIT #ZP2021-0095 FINDINGS & CONDITIONS
October 6, 2022 Page 13 of 17

Council action. Additional cleaning may be required by City of Berkeley Public Works
Engineering Dept.

G. All private or public projects that create and/or replace 10,000 square feet or more of
impervious surface must comply with Provision C.3 of the Alameda County NPDES permit
and must incorporate stormwater controls to enhance water quality. Permit submittals shall
include a Stormwater Requirement Checklist and detailed information showing how the
proposed project will meet Provision C.3 stormwater requirements, including a) Site design
measures to reduce impervious surfaces, promote infiltration, and reduce water quality
impacts; b) Source Control Measures to keep pollutants out of stormwater runoff; c)
Stormwater treatment measures that are hydraulically sized to remove pollutants from
stormwater; d) an O & M (Operations and Maintenance) agreement for all stormwater
treatment devices and installations; and e) Engineering calculations for all stormwater
devices (both mechanical and biological).

H. All on-site storm drain inlets must be labeled “No Dumping — Drains to Bay” or equivalent
using methods approved by the City.

I.  Most washing and/or steam cleaning must be done at an appropriately equipped facility that
drains to the sanitary sewer. Any outdoor washing or pressure washing must be managed
in such a way that there is no discharge or soaps or other pollutants to the storm drain.
Sanitary connections are subject to the review, approval and conditions of the sanitary
district with jurisdiction for receiving the discharge.

J. Sidewalks and parking lots shall be swept regularly to prevent the accumulation of litter and
debris. If pressure washed, debris must be trapped and collected to prevent entry to the
storm drain system. If any cleaning agent or degreaser is used, wash water shall not
discharge to the storm drains; wash waters should be collected and discharged to the
sanitary sewer. Discharges to the sanitary sewer are subject to the review, approval and
conditions of the sanitary district with jurisdiction for receiving the discharge.

K. The applicant is responsible for ensuring that all contractors and sub-contractors are aware
of and implement all stormwater quality control measures. Failure to comply with the
approved construction BMPs shall result in the issuance of correction notices, citations, or
a project stop work order.

39. Public Works. All piles of debris, soil, sand, or other loose materials shall be covered at night
and during rainy weather with plastic at least one-eighth millimeter thick and secured to the
ground.

40. Public Works. The applicant shall ensure that all excavation takes into account surface and
subsurface waters and underground streams so as not to adversely affect adjacent properties
and rights-of-way.

41. Public Works. The project sponsor shall maintain sandbags or other devices around the site
perimeter during the rainy season to prevent on-site soils from being washed off-site and into
the storm drain system. The project sponsor shall comply with all City ordinances regarding
construction and grading.

42. Public Works. Prior to any excavation, grading, clearing, or other activities involving soil
disturbance during the rainy season the applicant shall obtain approval of an erosion prevention
plan by the Building and Safety Division and the Public Works Department. The applicant shall

_ Rev - Page 57
File:



Page 42 of 93

2018 BLAKE STREET - USE PERMIT #ZP2021-0095 FINDINGS & CONDITIONS
October 6, 2022 Page 14 of 17

43.

44,

be responsible for following these and any other measures required by the Building and Safety
Division and the Public Works Department.

Public Works. The removal or obstruction of any fire hydrant shall require the submission of a
plan to the City’s Public Works Department for the relocation of the fire hydrant during
construction.

Public Works. If underground utilities leading to adjacent properties are uncovered and/or
broken, the contractor involved shall immediately notify the Public Works Department and the
Building & Safety Division, and carry out any necessary corrective action to their satisfaction.

Prior to Final Inspection or Issuance of Occupancy Permit:

45.

46.

47.

File:

Compliance with Conditions. The project shall conform to the plans and statements in the Use
Permit. The developer is responsible for providing sufficient evidence to demonstrate
compliance with the requirements throughout the implementation of this Use Permit.

Compliance with Approved Plan. The project shall conform to the plans and statements in the
Use Permit. All landscape, site and architectural improvements shall be completed per the
attached approved drawings dated March 23, 2022, except as modified by conditions of
approval.

Transportation Demand Management. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, the
property owner shall facilitate a site inspection by Planning Department staff to confirm that the
physical improvements required in Section 23.334.030(C) and 23.322.090 (bike parking) have
been installed. The property owner shall also provide documentation that the programmatic
measures required in 23.334.030(A) and 23.334.030(B) will be implemented.

A. Consistent with Section 23.334.030(A), all parking spaces provided for residents be leased or
sold separate from the rental or purchase of dwelling units for the life of the dwelling units, such
that potential renters or buyers shall have the option of renting or buying a dwelling unit at a
price lower than would be the case if there were a single price for both the dwelling unit and
the parking space(s).

B. Consistent with Section 23.334.030(B), at least one of the following transit benefits shall be
offered, at no cost to the resident, for a period of ten years after the issuance of a Certificate
of Occupancy. A notice describing these transportation benefits shall be posted in a location
or locations visible to all employees.

1. One monthly pass for unlimited local bus transit service for every bedroom in each
dwelling unit, up to a maximum of two benefits per dwelling unit.

2. Subject to the review and approval of the Zoning Officer in consultation with the
Transportation Division Manager, a functionally equivalent transit benefit in an
amount at least equal to the price of a non-discounted unlimited monthly local bus
pass.

C. Consistent with Section 23.334.030(C), publicly-available, real-time transportation information
in a common area, such as a lobby or elevator bay, on televisions, computer monitors or other
displays readily visible to residents and/or visitors, shall be provided. Transportation
information shall include, but is not limited to, transit arrivals and departures for nearby transit
routes.

Property owners may be required to pay administrative fees associated with compliance with

this Condition.

Rev - Page 58



Page 43 of 93

2018 BLAKE STREET - USE PERMIT #ZP2021-0095 FINDINGS & CONDITIONS
October 6, 2022 Page 15 of 17

BELOW MARKET RATE UNITS

48.

49,

50.

51.

File:

Number of Below Market Rate Units. The project shall provide two Low-Income, below market
rate rental dwelling units (“BMR Units”), which are required to comply with the State Density
Bonus Law (Government Code Section 65915). The BMR Units shall be designated in the
Regulatory Agreement and shall be reasonably dispersed throughout the project; be of the same
size and contain, on average, the same number of bedrooms as the non-BMR units in the
project; and be comparable with the design or use of non-BMR units in terms of appearance,
materials and finish quality. The designation of BMR Units shall conform to the addresses
assigned to the building by the City.

Reqgulatory Agreement. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall enter into a
Regulatory Agreement that implements Government Code Section 65915 and this Use Permit.
The Regulatory Agreement may include any terms and affordability standards determined by the
City to be necessary to ensure such compliance. The maximum qualifying household income for
the BMR Units shall be 50 percent of area median income (AMI), and the maximum housing
payment shall be 30 percent of 50 percent of AMI, as set forth in the following paragraphs of this
condition. If the BMR units are occupied by very low-income tenants receiving a rental subsidy
through the Section 8 or Shelter Plus Care programs, the rent received by the project sponsor
may exceed the restricted rent to the payment standards allowed under those programs so long
as the rent allowed under the payment standards is not greater than the market rents charged
for comparable units in the development. The applicant shall submit the Regulatory Agreement
to the Housing and Community Services Department (HHCS) via email to
affordablehousing@cityofberkeley.info for review and approval.

In addition, the following provisions shall apply:

A. Maximum rent shall be adjusted for the family size appropriate for the unit pursuant to
California Health & Safety Code Section 50052.5 (h).

B. Rent shall include a reasonable allowance for utilities, as published and updated by the
Berkeley Housing Authority, including garbage collection, sewer, water, electricity, gas, and
other heating, cooking and refrigeration fuels. Such allowance shall take into account the
cost of an adequate level of service. Utilities do not include telephone service. Rent also
includes any separately charged fees or service charges assessed by the lessor which are
required of all tenants, other than security deposits.

C.BMR units will be provided for the life of the project under Section 22.20.065.

Determination of Area Median Income (AMI)

e The “AMI” (Area Median Income) shall be based on the income standards for the Oakland
Primary Metropolitan Statistical Area reported by the United States Department of Housing
and Urban Development (HUD). In the event HUD discontinues establishing such income
standards, AMI shall be based on income standards determined by the California State
Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD). If such income standards are
no longer in existence, the City will designate another appropriate source or method for
determining the median household income.

Rev - Page 59


mailto:affordablehousing@cityofberkeley.info

Page 44 of 93

2018 BLAKE STREET - USE PERMIT #ZP2021-0095 FINDINGS & CONDITIONS
October 6, 2022 Page 16 of 17

52.

e The applicable AMI for the purpose of determining the allowable rent for each unit (but not
for the purpose of determining eligibility for occupancy of an inclusionary unit) shall be
determined in accordance with the following table:

Unit Size AMI Standard

Studio unit AMI for a one-person household
One-bedroom unit AMI for a two-person household
Two-bedroom unit AMI for a three-person household
Three-bedroom unit | AMI for a four-person household

Nothing in these conditions shall be interpreted to prohibit, or to require modification of the Use
Permit or Regulatory Agreement to allow, the provision of additional BMR units, or additional
affordability, than are required in the foregoing provisions.

At All Times:

53.

54.

55.

56.

57.

58.

59.

File:

Transportation Demand Management Compliance. The property owner shall submit to the
Planning Department periodic TDM Compliance Reports in accordance with Administrative
Regulations, subject to the review and oversight of the Zoning Officer. Property owners may be
required to pay administrative fees associated with compliance with this Condition, pursuant to
BMC Section 23.334.040(B).

Exterior Lighting. All exterior lighting shall be energy efficient where feasible; and shielded and
directed downward and away from property lines to prevent excessive glare beyond the subject
property.

Rooftop Projections. No additional rooftop or elevator equipment shall be added to exceed the
approved maximum roof height without submission of an application for a Use Permit
Modification, subject to Board review and approval.

Drainage Patterns. The applicant shall establish and maintain drainage patterns that do not
adversely affect adjacent properties and rights-of-way. Drainage plans shall be submitted for
approval of the Building & Safety Division and Public Works Department, if required.

Electrical Meter. Only one electrical meter fixture may be installed per dwelling unit.

Residential Permit Parking. No Residential Permit Parking (RPP) permits shall be issued to
project residents, nor shall commercial placards be issued to non-residential oc<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>